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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
(Mark One)

þ ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended: December 31, 2009
OR

o TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 or 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from                      to                     
Commission File Number: 000-23100

HEALTHSPORT, INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware
(State or other jurisdiction of
incorporation or organization)

22-2649848
(IRS Employer Identification No.)

1620 Beacon Place Oxnard, California
(Address of principal executive offices)

93033
(Zip Code)

(818) 593-4880
(Registrant�s telephone number, including area code)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of Each Class Name of Each Exchange on Which Registered
None None

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Exchange Act: Common Stock, Par Value $0.0001
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act o
Yes þ No
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the
Exchange Act. o Yes þ No
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. þ Yes o No
Indicate by checkmark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on it�s corporate Website, if any,
every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant for Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the
preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). o Yes o
No
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Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained
herein, and will not be contained, to the best of the registrant�s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information
statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. o
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer,
or a smaller reporting company.

Large accelerated filer o Accelerated filer o Non-accelerated filer o Smaller reporting company þ
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). o
Yes þ No
The aggregate market value of voting and non-voting common equity held by non-affiliates computed as of the last
business day of HealthSport, Inc.�s most recently completed second quarter (June 30, 2009) was approximately
$13 million (based on the closing sale price of $0.26 on June 30, 2009). For this purpose, all of HealthSport, Inc.�s
officers and directors and their affiliates were assumed to be affiliates of HealthSport, Inc.
As of March 25, 2010, 122,082,717 shares of HealthSport, Inc.�s common stock were outstanding.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
Portions of the registrant�s definitive Proxy Statement to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within
120 days after the registrant�s fiscal year ended December 31, 2009 are incorporated by reference into Part III of this
report.
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In this report, unless the context indicates otherwise, the terms �HealthSport,� �Company,� �we,� �us,� and �our� refer to
HealthSport, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and its wholly-owned subsidiaries: Enlyten, Inc., a Nevada corporation;
InnoZen, Inc., a Nevada corporation and InnoZen�s majority owned subsidiary Pacific Manufacturing Group LLC
(�PMG�) until its sale on December 30, 2008; Health Strip Solutions, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company; and
HealthSport Nutraceutical Products, Inc., a Nevada corporation.
Special Note about Forward-Looking Statements
Certain statements in this report, including information incorporated by reference, are �forward-looking statements.�
Forward-looking statements reflect our current views about future events and financial performance based on certain
assumptions. They include opinions, forecasts, intentions, plans, goals, projections, guidance, expectations, beliefs or
other statements that are not statements of historical fact. Words such as �may,� �will,� �should,� �could,� �would,� �expects,�
�plans,� �believes,� �anticipates,� �intends,� �estimates,� �approximates,� �predicts,� or �projects,� and similar expressions may
identify a statement as a forward-looking statement. Any statements that refer to projections of our future financial
performance, anticipated trends in our business, our goals, strategies, focus and plans, and other characterizations of
future events or circumstances, including statements expressing general optimism about future operating results and
the development of our products, are forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements in this report may
include statements about our ability to:

� maintain operating costs and implement our current business plan;

� obtain future financing or funds when needed;

� effectively launch new products;

� develop and obtain a diverse and loyal customer base;

� protect our intellectual property rights and avoid infringing on the rights of others;

� attract and retain a qualified employee base;

� respond to new technology developments before our competitors;

� successfully complete acquisitions, strategic partnerships, and other significant transactions; and

� develop and execute a successful business strategy.
The forward-looking statements in this report speak only as of the date of this report and caution should be taken not
to place undue reliance on any such forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements are subject to certain
events, risks, and uncertainties that may be outside of our control. When considering forward-looking statements, you
should carefully review the risks, uncertainties and other cautionary statements in this report as they identify certain
important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed in or implied by the
forward-looking statements. These factors include, among others, the risks described under Item 1A and elsewhere in
this report, as well as in other reports and documents we file with the SEC.

-3-
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PART I
Item 1. Business.
HealthSport is a technology company specializing in the development and manufacture of proprietary, oral thin film
products. We are dedicated to improving the quality of life through innovative delivery technologies for
pharmaceutical, nutraceutical and veterinary products.
A pioneer in the industry, we were the first company to deliver a drug active via oral thin film with the development
of the Chloraseptic® Sore Throat Relief Strips® in June 2003. Utilizing our patent pending, bi-layer technology, we
have proceeded to develop and launch an impressive variety of dietary supplement and over the counter
pharmaceutical thin film products, including those containing vitamins, minerals, electrolytes, sleep aids, caffeine,
antioxidants and various over-the-counter drug actives.
Our thin film, which for most applications is similar in size and shape to a postage stamp, dissolves rapidly and
utilizes patent pending �bi-layer� technology and other novel processes, including proprietary micro-encapsulation
methods to mask the taste of actives in the film products. The result of this superior technology is higher quality, more
stable products that support a platform capable of carrying larger product volumes and a more diverse array of active
ingredients. We believe these qualities render our thin film effective, easy to use and suited for a multitude of
consumer products in both the dietary supplement and pharmaceutical arenas.
We currently manufacture and distribute a number of nutritional supplement products formulated to contain
electrolytes, vitamins, melatonin, caffeine, and other supplements. We are also currently conducting research and
development related to future potential products that will contain over-the-counter and prescription drug actives.
Based on our existing portfolio of intellectual property, we anticipate significant potential opportunities to develop
business with pharmaceutical companies. We believe our thin film technology can be used to create new, more
effective drug products that should enjoy strong physician, patient and consumer acceptance. One unique potential
opportunity involves using our technology to enable pharmaceutical companies to better manage the life cycle of their
products. By combining our thin film delivery technology with existing drugs, we may be able to strategically
differentiate existing or soon-to-be generic drugs from potential generic competitors or provide branded prescription
products with additional patent protection or exclusivity in the marketplace.
We intend to continue to make revolutionary advances in producing high-quality products that successfully address
medical and consumer health needs while minimizing the risk of side effects.
Industry Overview
Within the pharmaceutical and dietary supplement industries, we believe that the delivery technology market has
important and significant potential for growth. Among the multitude of delivery technologies, we believe that oral thin
film, which is water-soluble and designed to dissolve rapidly after contact with saliva, is one of the most promising,
both in terms of its technological advantages and its growth potential.
Oral thin film technology, popularized by the 2001 launch of Listerine� breath strips, has expanded to many product
lines and products within the over-the-counter drug, dietary supplement and homeopathic categories. We project this
delivery form to become a multi-billion dollar business within the next several years.

-4-
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We also believe oral thin film has multiple material benefits over existing drug delivery forms, including convenience,
ease of use, dosing accuracy, preclusive of water and patient/consumer compliance. These and other benefits may be
particularly relevant for the pediatric, geriatric and veterinary categories and indicate the form�s suitability for a
multitude of consumer products. But perhaps the greatest benefit of oral thin film is its ability to absorb efficiently and
rapidly in the oral mucosa (inside of mouth) and buccal cavity. Through clinical studies and our own research, we
expect to show that oral thin film may provide an opportunity to widen the therapeutic index and result in safer, faster
acting pharmaceutical products.
Intellectual Property
Our thin film technology utilizes patent pending and proprietary processes that we believe differentiates us from our
competitors. The foundation of this distinction is our proprietary, bi-layer system. This system includes a liquid-based
film layer that contains and stabilizes the active ingredients along with a powder matrix layer that can deliver
supplemental active ingredients and provide additional functional components, including flavoring agents, stabilizers,
pliability enhancers, and mucosal permeation enhancers. These two layers are specifically designed to work together
to control various aspects of the product composition, such as dissolution rate, active absorption rate and product
adhesion. The completed bi-layer system allows for a product with increased stability, higher loading of active
ingredients and increased palatability.
We have filed several U.S. and foreign patent applications relating to our thin film technology. In January of this year
we were issued a Mexican patent relating to our bi-layer technology. We currently have seven patent applications
pending in the U.S. and abroad. As we continue to develop our technology and products, we expect to have additional
potential patent filings in the future. We also maintain a significant portfolio of intellectual property as trade secrets,
technical know-how, and proprietary processes and information. All such intellectual property is protected by a
combination of contractual provisions, Company policies, intellectual property laws and other measures.
Products
We have developed a variety of oral thin film products in both the dietary supplement and pharmaceutical categories.
Independently or through our distribution partners, we have launched multiple film-strip products in the U.S. over the
last six years. Our previous lines of branded products and current private label brands have been distributed among the
following market segments and product categories:

� Dietary Supplements: vitamins, minerals, antioxidants, sleep aids, diet and energy

� Sports Nutrition: metabolic enhancement, electrolyte supplement

� OTC: cough and cold, sore throat

� Pediatric Care: oral electrolyte replacement
Research and Development
Our goal is to develop high quality products that successfully address medical and consumer health/nutrition needs
while potentially minimizing the risk of side effects. We believe that our technology also enables us to offer products
with added palatability, portability, convenience and ease of use.
We continue to make significant advances and developments in our technology platform that we expect will take
product capabilities to even higher levels. Examples of such advancements include certain microencapsulation
technologies, taste masking systems, composition formulations, stability systems and production methodologies.
These and other technological advances have enabled the Company to offer highly effective products that contain safe
levels of active ingredients in great tasting film strips. In the future we also anticipate the ability to further advance our
technology through clinical studies that may be conducted with our products.

-5-
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We are also currently conducting research and development related to future potential products that will contain
over-the-counter and prescription drug actives. Our product pipeline includes dozens of unique products in various
dosage formats and flavors. Some of these pipeline products include the following:

Dietary Supplements/ Ethical Pharmaceutical and
Nutraceuticals Veterinary OTC

Energy / Caffeine Antioxidants Allergy
Stress Relief Vitamins & Minerals Erectile Dysfunction

Appetite Suppressant Flea & Tick Children�s Pain Relief
Vitamin Supplements Heartworm Adult Pain Relief
Hang Over Relief Breath and Tooth Care Allergy / Antihistamine

Resveratrol Calming Anti-Diarrheal
Multi-Vitamin Allergy Cough / Cold

B-Vitamin Complex Heartburn / Acid Reducer
Antioxidant Complex Motion Sickness

Beta-Carotene Nasal Decongestant
Herbal Mood Control Sleep Aid

Calorie Burner Sore Throat
Cactus Extract Insomina
Immune Defense Urinary Track

Manufacturing
Until December 2009, we operated a 9,500 square foot manufacturing facility in Woodland Hills, California. In
December 2009, we completed relocation to a new 25,000 square foot facility in Oxnard, California. We are currently
in the process of developing this facility into our new, upgraded manufacturing plant. As of March 31, 2010, the plant
is currently under design and construction to become a fully operational, cGMP edible film strip manufacturing
facility capable of producing both dietary supplement and over-the-counter drug products. The expected completion
date is June 15, 2010. Our Oxnard facility also houses the Company�s completed research and development operations,
which in conjunction with the manufacturing plant will include our manufacturing scale-up and product
commercialization operations.
In addition, under our agreement with Supplemental Manufacturing & Ingredients, LLC, an Arizona limited liability
company (�SMI�) (described more fully in Item 6 below), SMI is currently constructing a 45,000 square foot,
state-of-the-art, cGMP, thin film manufacturing facility in Tempe, Arizona that will be capable of producing both
dietary supplement and pharmaceutical products. The facility is being designed and built to meet all domestic and
international regulatory requirements. Once complete, this facility will significantly increase our commercial
manufacturing capacity and is designed to be capable of producing over 2 billion oral film strips annually. Slated to
utilize an array of high speed, automated equipment, it should provide us with the ability to undertake large scale
pharmaceutical production. The projected completion date for the Tempe facility is September 30, 2010.
Our manufacturing operations will be designed to perform robust and repeatable processes to meet specific,
measurable quality and performance standards. Our cGMP quality system provides a set of formalized standard
operating procedures and policies that drive this production process and that we believe will ensure high quality, safe,
profitable and effective products. cGMP is a term recognized worldwide for the control and management of
manufacturing and quality control/assurance of pharmaceutical, dietary supplement and food products under
regulations promulgated by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration. Recently enacted rules have established a
timeline for all dietary supplement manufacturers to be cGMP compliant. We believe many of our competitors will
fail to meet these new requirements thus further increasing our value as an enterprise.

-6-
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Sales & Distribution
As a fully integrated developer, producer and supplier of oral thin film products, we are aggressively pursuing
additional opportunities for expanding our sales and distribution channels. We plan to partner with large
pharmaceutical and retail products companies to leverage our core competencies with proven branding and marketing
success.
On March 11, 2008, we entered into a five-year distribution agreement with Perrigo Florida, Inc. (�Perrigo�), formerly
known as Unico Holdings, Inc. Perrigo�s customers include most of the largest retailers and distributors in the U.S. in
each of these sales channels. The agreement calls for a minimum of $22 million of product purchases over a five-year
term in order for Perrigo to maintain its exclusive distribution right.
On September 11, 2008, we entered into a distribution agreement with T. Lynn Mitchell Companies, LLC (�T Lynn�)
for the production and sale of a variety of dietary supplement products, including Enlyten branded Antioxidant Strips,
Electrolytes Plus Strips, Energy Strips and Melatonin Strips. The agreement provided that T Lynn would act as a
distributor and reseller of our products. On March 22, 2010, we sent a letter to T Lynn announcing our intent to
terminate such agreement for non-performance and material breach.
On July 14, 2009, we entered into a strategic alliance with Destiny Productions, LLC and Content Marketing
Solutions, Inc. for the strategic marketing, content development, distribution and sale of our oral thin film products.
Segment Reporting
We currently operate in one reportable segment. Substantially all of our sales are currently domestic.
Customers
During 2009, we had 2 customers which accounted for 88% of consolidated sales. During 2008, we had 3 customers
which accounted for 60% of consolidated sales. Our products are sold through a variety of outlets, including national
retail drug chains and direct-to-consumer distribution channels.
Backlog
At December 31, 2009, the Company did not have a backlog. At December 31, 2008, the Company had a backlog of
purchase orders of $1,086,000.
Employees
At December 31, 2009, we had 13 full-time employees, down from 43 at December 31, 2008. Our employees are not
represented by a labor union. We consider relations with our employees to be good.
Change in Control Transactions
On December 1, 2009, we completed the sale of 66,666,667 shares (the �Shares�) of our common stock (the �SMI
Financing�) to SMI, pursuant to the stock purchase agreement between the Company and SMI dated as of November 6,
2009 (the �Stock Purchase Agreement�). In connection with the completion of the SMI Financing and in accordance
with the Stock Purchase Agreement, SMI paid to us $2,000,000 and issued a promissory note (the �Promissory Note�) to
us in the amount of $8,000,000.

-7-
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The Stock Purchase Agreement resulted in a change in control of our Board of Directors as well as a change in our
executive officers. In connection with the SMI Financing, three of the Company�s six then current directors, M.E.
Hank Durschlag, Anthony Seaber and Jeffrey Wattenberg, resigned their positions as directors upon closing of the
SMI Financing. In addition, SMI was granted the right to appoint four members out of a seven person Board of
Directors. At SMI�s request, we appointed Neil Allen, Alex Buelna, Ferrel Raskin and Kevin Taheri to our board. Each
of the four board designees, as a condition to their appointment, has placed into escrow a written resignation which
shall become effective, at the Company�s election, upon the occurrence of an Event of Default under the Promissory
Note.
The Stock Purchase Agreement also provides that for so long as any amounts remain outstanding under the
Promissory Note, the Company shall obtain the approval of not less than five directors of a seven member board of
directors (or not less than one plus the number of directors appointed by the Investor if a different size board) prior to
taking certain corporate actions, including: (a) changing the Company�s principal line of business; (b) any liquidation,
dissolution or winding-up; (c) any amendment or restatement to the Company�s articles of incorporation or bylaws; (d)
increasing or decreasing the number of board members; (e) significant acquisitions, dispositions, licenses or transfers
of assets outside the ordinary course of business; (f) issuing capital stock, except for shares issuable in accordance
with the terms of outstanding employee benefit plans or warrants, options or other derivative securities; (g) declaring
dividends or redeeming, purchasing or otherwise effecting any recapitalization or restructuring of outstanding shares
of capital stock; (h) incurring significant indebtedness; (i) effecting any change in control transaction; (j) modifying
any executive employment agreements; (k) amending any existing agreement between the Company and SMI; or
(l) any amendment modification or waiver of the use of proceeds from the sale of the Shares from the agreed upon use
of proceeds set forth in the Stock Purchase Agreement.
In connection with the SMI Financing, we agreed to appoint Kevin Taheri as our Chief Executive Officer, Robert
Davidson as our President, and Thomas Beckett as our Chief Financial Officer, Chief Operating Officer and Secretary
of the Company. The appointments of Messrs. Taheri, Davidson, and Beckett to their respective positions were
effective upon closing of the SMI Financing.
History
HealthSport, Inc. was originally incorporated in 1985 as Horizon Capital Corp. We were known as Reconversion
Technologies, Inc. until May 1, 2000, at which time our name was changed to Logisoft Corp. On May 15, 2001, we
changed our name from Logisoft Corp. to Team Sports Entertainment, Inc. On November 8, 2004, we changed our
name to Idea Sports Entertainment Group, Inc. On May 15, 2006 we changed our name to the HealthSport, Inc. since
that time we acquired the following operating subsidiaries.

Enlyten, Inc. Enlyten, Inc. (�Enlyten�) is a Nevada corporation that was organized on
November 28, 2006.

HealthStrip Solutions, LLC HealthStrip Solutions, LLC (�HealthStrip�) is a Nevada limited liability company
that was organized on February 13, 2006. We acquired 80% of Health Strip on
March 29, 2006, another 10% of Health Strip on December 21, 2006 and the
remaining 10% on December 27, 2006.

HealthSport Nutraceutical
Products, Inc.

HealthSport Neutraceutical Products, Inc. (�Neutraceutical Products�) is a Nevada
corporation organized on November 17, 2006 that we acquired on December 6,
2006.

InnoZen, Inc. InnoZen is a Nevada corporation organized on May 30, 2002 that we acquired on
May 4, 2007.

-8-
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Item 1A. Risk Factors.
Investment in our common stock involves a high degree of risk. Please carefully consider the risks described below, in
addition to the other information set forth in this report, before making an investment decision. These risks and
uncertainties have the potential to materially affect our business, financial condition, results of operations, cash flows,
projected results and future prospects. If any of the following risks actually occur, our business, financial condition or
results of operations could suffer. In that case, the value of our common stock could decline, and you may lose all or
part of your investment. The risk factors described below are not exhaustive. These risk factors represent only some of
the risks associated with investment in our common stock.
We have experienced significant losses to date. If our business model is not successful, or if we are unable to
generate sufficient revenue to offset our expenditures, then we may not become profitable and you may lose your
entire investment in our company.
We have not been profitable on a quarterly or annual basis since the adoption of our thin film pharmaceutical product
business plan. Our operations resulted in a net loss of $19.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2009, and
$8.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2008. As of December 31, 2009, our accumulated deficit was
$62 million. We expect to make significant future expenditures related to the development and expansion of our
business. In addition, as a public company, we will incur significant legal, accounting, and other expenses that private
companies do not incur. As a result of these increased expenditures, we will have to generate and sustain increased
revenue to achieve and maintain future profitability.
While our revenue has grown somewhat in recent periods, that growth has not been significant and future revenue
growth may not be sustainable and we may not achieve sufficient revenue to achieve profitability. We have incurred
and may continue to incur significant losses in the future for a number of reasons, including due to the other risks
described in this report, and we may encounter unforeseen expenses, difficulties, complications, delays, and other
unknown factors. Accordingly, we may not be able to achieve profitability and we may continue to incur significant
losses for the foreseeable future.
We have over $1 million of convertible promissory notes that are due or will become due and payable on March 31,
2010. We do not currently have the capital to repay these notes.
We currently have $450,000 of secured convertible promissory notes outstanding that were due and payable on
September 30, 2009. We have an additional $625,000 of secured convertible promissory notes that mature on
March 31, 2010. We do not currently have the capital resources to pay these convertible promissory notes. We plan to
seek extensions for payment of some of the Notes. In addition, we intend to use the proceeds from the SMI Financing
to repay the notes. If we cannot extend the repayment dates on the notes, or secure the capital from the SMI Financing
necessary to repay the notes, the holders of those notes may bring action against us to collect payment. Any such
action could result in significant additional cost to the Company, disruption of our financial operations and foreclosure
by the holders on the assets of the Company.

-9-
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Supplemental Manufacturing & Ingredients, LLC (�SMI�) owns approximately 55% of our outstanding common
stock and has the power under a stock purchase agreement we entered into with SMI to nominate four out of our
seven directors on our board of directors.
Supplemental Manufacturing & Ingredients, LLC owns approximately 55% of our outstanding common stock and is
entitled pursuant to the terms of a stock purchase agreement to nominate four out of seven of our directors on our
board of directors. SMI therefore owns a majority of our common stock and appoints a majority of our board of
directors. As a result, SMI will be able to influence the outcome of stockholder votes on various matters, including the
election of directors and extraordinary corporate transactions, including business combinations. The interests of SMI
may differ from other stockholders. Furthermore, SMI�s concentration of ownership in our common stock will reduce
the percentage of our company held in the public float, which may impact the liquidity and market price of our
common stock.
The stock purchase agreement with SMI provides for anti-dilution protection, requiring us to issue additional
shares of common stock to SMI upon the occurrence of certain events. Any such issuance may dilute your
ownership interest in the Company.
The stock purchase agreement that we entered into with SMI provides that we will issue additional shares to SMI
under the following circumstances:
We are required through September 15, 2011 to issue additional shares of our common stock to SMI so that SMI
maintains a 55% ownership stake in the aggregate of (i) those shares outstanding as of the date we closed the stock
purchase transaction with SMI, (ii) any shares issued to SMI due to certain undisclosed liabilities that are described in
the stock purchase agreement and (iii) any shares issued to third parties from the exercise of options, warrants or other
derivative securities that were either outstanding or reserved for issuance as of the date we closed the stock purchase
transaction with SMI.
We are required through September 15, 2010 to issue additional shares of our common stock to SMI in the event we
have certain undisclosed liabilities that are described in the stock purchase agreement. We are required to issue shares
to SMI in the event of an undisclosed liability in an amount equal to 55% of such undisclosed liability multiplied by
$0.15.
If on September 15, 2010 the shares issued under the stock purchase agreement together with any shares issued to
SMI pursuant to either of the provisions summarized immediately above equal less than 55% of our outstanding
common stock, then SMI has the right to purchase the number of shares of our common stock so that SMI owns 55%
of the shares outstanding of our common stock outstanding as of September 15, 2010. This option to purchase our
share expires on November 30, 2010.
The issuance of shares pursuant to any of these provisions could result in substantial dilution to our existing
stockholders.
Our limited operating history may not serve as an adequate basis to judge our future prospects and results of
operations. We are subject to the risks and uncertainties of an early stage company.
The Company was incorporated in 1985 but we did not adopt our current business plan relating to edible film strip
technology and the development, manufacture, distribution, licensing and sale of edible thin film products containing
dietary supplement and drug active ingredients until 2006. Our limited operating history in the field of edible thin film
technology and products may not provide a meaningful basis on which to evaluate our business. We will continue to
encounter risks and difficulties frequently experienced by companies at a similar stage of development, including our
potential failure to:

� maintain and improve our technology;

� expand our product and service offerings and maintain the high quality of products and services offered;
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� manage our expanding operations, including the integration of any future acquisitions;

� obtain sufficient working capital to support our expansion and to fill customers� orders on time;

� maintain adequate control of our expenses;

� implement our product development, marketing, sales, and acquisition strategies and adapt and modify them
as needed; and

� anticipate and adapt to changing conditions in the markets in which we operate as well as the impact of any
changes in government regulation, mergers and acquisitions involving our competitors, technological
developments, and other significant competitive and market dynamics.

If we are not successful in addressing any or all of these risks, then our business may be materially and adversely
affected.
Our auditors have expressed substantial doubt regarding our ability to continue as a going concern.
As of the date of our most recent audit, which included the fiscal years ended December 31, 2009 and December 31,
2008, we had not generated sufficient revenues to meet our cash flow needs. In their audit report for those periods, our
auditors expressed substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern. We cannot assure you that we
will be able to obtain sufficient funds from our operating or financing activities to support our continued operations. If
we cannot continue as a going concern, we may need to substantially revise our business plan or cease operations,
which may reduce or negate the value of your investment.
We will require additional capital in order to fund our operating expenses, and if we fail to raise sufficient
additional capital we may be forced to curtail or cease operations.
On December 1, 2009 we entered into a stock purchase agreement with SMI which provided for payment to us of
$10 million, payable $2 million at closing and $8 million under the terms of a promissory note. The promissory note
called for installment payments to be made to us through June 30, 2010. SMI has made the initial installment payment
under the promissory note, but has not made subsequent installment payments. On March 19, 2010 we entered into an
amendment to the promissory note and related agreements to restructure the payment obligations to us. Under the
revised promissory note, SMI is to pay us an aggregate of $7.5 million between May 15, 2010 and September 15,
2010. If SMI fails to make the installments payments under the amended promissory note, we will need to secure
capital from other sources in order to continue our operations. Even if SMI makes the installment payments under its
amended promissory note, we expect to require further capital to execute our current business plan.
Our ability to secure any other financing will depend upon a number of factors, including our financial condition,
business operations and prospects, as well as general economic conditions, and conditions in the relevant financial
markets. We cannot assure you that we will be able to secure financing, as needed, and if we cannot we will be forced
to curtail or cease operations. Moreover, even if we identify a possible financing, the terms may not be favorable to
us, or may involve substantial dilution to our existing stockholders.
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Our board of directors has the right to issue additional shares of common stock or preferred stock, without
stockholder consent, which could have the effect of creating substantial dilution or impeding or discouraging a
takeover transaction.
Pursuant to our certificate of incorporation, our board of directors may issue additional shares of common or preferred
stock. Any additional issuance of common stock or the issuance of preferred stock could have the effect of impeding
or discouraging the acquisition of control of us by means of a merger, tender offer, proxy contest or otherwise,
including a transaction in which our stockholders would receive a premium over the market price for their shares,
thereby protecting the continuity of our management. Specifically, if in the due exercise of its fiduciary obligations,
our board of directors was to determine that a takeover proposal was not in the best interest of the Company or our
stockholders, shares could be issued by our board of directors without stockholder approval in one or more
transactions that might prevent or render more difficult or costly the completion of the takeover by:

� diluting the voting or other rights of the proposed acquirer or insurgent stockholder group;

� diluting the voting or other rights of the proposed acquirer or insurgent stockholder group;

� putting a substantial voting block in institutional or other hands that might undertake to support the
incumbent board of directors; or

� effecting an acquisition that might complicate or preclude the takeover
We may encounter substantial competition in our business and our failure to compete effectively may adversely
affect our ability to generate revenue.
We believe that existing and new competitors will continue to improve the design and performance of their products
and to introduce new products with competitive price and performance characteristics. We expect that we will be
required to continue to invest in product development and productivity improvements to compete effectively in our
markets.
Our competitors may have substantially greater resources than us. They may be able to take advantage of new
technologies or products or undertake more aggressive and costly marketing campaigns than ours, which may
adversely affect our marketing strategies and could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations, and financial condition.
We may not be able to prevent others from unauthorized use of our patents and other intellectual property, which
could harm our business and competitive position.
We rely on a combination of patent, copyright, service mark, trademark, and trade secret laws, as well as
confidentiality procedures and contractual restrictions, to establish and protect our proprietary rights on a global basis,
all of which provide only limited protection.
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We own multiple filed United States and foreign patent applications covering our technology and we expect to file
more U.S. and foreign patent applications in the future. But the process of seeking patent protection can be lengthy
and expensive and we cannot assure that our patent applications will result in patents being issued, or that our existing
or future issued patents will be sufficient to provide us with meaningful protection or commercial advantages. Since
the filing of some of these patent applications may have been, or will be, made after the date of first sale or disclosure
of the subject inventions, patent protection may not be available for these inventions outside the United States.
We also cannot assure that our current or potential competitors do not have, and will not obtain, patents that will
prevent, limit or interfere with our ability to make, use or sell our technology.
Assertions by third parties that we infringe their intellectual property, whether successful or not, could subject us to
costly and time-consuming litigation or expensive licenses.
The medical device and pharmaceutical industries are characterized by the existence of a large number of patents,
copyrights, trademarks, and trade secrets and by frequent litigation based on allegations of infringement or other
violations of intellectual property rights. We cannot assure you that our technologies do not infringe upon the
intellectual property rights of others. If we succeed in our business plan, the economic reward, and therefore the
possibility that someone would bring an intellectual property rights claims against will grow. The costs of defending
intellectual property infringement claims can be very large. Any intellectual property rights claim against us, with or
without merit, could be time-consuming, expensive to litigate or settle, and could divert management attention and
financial resources.
For any intellectual property rights claim against us we may have substantial direct and indirect costs. Direct costs can
include a requirement to pay damages or stop using technology found to be in violation of a third party�s rights. We
may have to purchase a license for the technology, which may not be available on reasonable terms, if at all, may
significantly increase our operating expenses, or may require us to restrict our business activities in one or more
respects. As a result, we may also be required to develop alternative non-infringing technology, which could require
significant effort and expense. Substantial indirect costs also may be expected in the form of diversion of development
and management resources in strategic planning for legal, technology, and business defenses to such claims.
We are substantially dependent on third party distributors for the sale of our products.
Since 2008, substantially all of our recent product sales have come through two distributors. On March 11, 2008 we
entered into a five year distribution agreement with Perrigo Florida, Inc. which sells our products through a number of
retail and pharmaceutical channels. On September 11, 2008, we entered into a distribution agreement with T. Lynn
Mitchell Companies LLC to distribute certain products containing our bi-layered strip technology. During the third
quarter of 2009, we entered into a strategic alliance with Destiny Productions LLC and Content Marketing Solutions,
Inc. to provide additional strategic marketing, and distribution services for our products.
Following the end of the period covered by this report, we terminated our distributorship with T Lynn, for breach. T
Lynn was responsible for 79% percent of our product revenues in the year ended December 31, 2009.
We expect to continue to rely on the sales efforts of third party distributors for our products. Our distributors are not
exclusive to us and distribute other products from other manufacturers. We do not have the ability to exercise control
over the actions of our distributors in the same manner that we would an internal sales team. If those distributors
decide to terminate their arrangements with us, or fail to exert substantial efforts on our behalf, our revenues and
results of operations will be significantly impacted.
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If we fail to maintain proper and effective internal controls over financial reporting or are unable to remediate the
material weakness in our internal controls, then our ability to produce accurate and timely financial statements
could be impaired and investors� views of us could be harmed.
Our internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. Implementing and maintaining a system of internal controls over accounting and financial
reporting is a costly and time-consuming effort that needs to be re-evaluated frequently.
Implementing any appropriate changes to our internal controls may entail substantial management time, costs to
modify our existing processes, and take significant time to complete. These changes may not, however, be effective in
maintaining the adequacy of our internal controls, and any failure to maintain that adequacy, or consequent inability to
produce accurate financial statements on a timely basis, could increase our operating costs and harm our business. In
addition, investors� perceptions that our internal controls are inadequate or that we are unable to produce accurate
financial statements on a timely basis may harm our stock price and make it more difficult for us to effectively market
and distribute our products and services to new and existing customers.
We are responsible for the indemnification of our officers and directors.
Our articles of incorporation and bylaws provide for the indemnification of our directors, officers, employees, and
agents, and, under certain circumstances, against costs and expenses incurred by them in any litigation to which they
become a party arising from their association with or activities on our behalf. Consequently, if a claim is brought
against any of our officers or directors, we may be required to expend substantial funds to satisfy these indemnity
obligations.
We have never paid dividends on our capital stock and we do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the
foreseeable future.
We have paid no cash dividends on any of our classes of capital stock to date and we currently intend to retain our
future earnings, if any, to fund the development and growth of our business.
A material part of our growth strategy is the application of our technology to the drug delivery market, but we do
not have prior experience in this market and will not be successful if pharmaceutical companies or consumers do
not adopt our new products.
We plan to increase revenues and secure strategic distribution relationships by partnering with pharmaceutical
companies to use our thin film technology as a drug delivery method. To succeed, we must secure the pharmaceutical
community�s acceptance of our products. Even if we successfully secure a relationship with a pharmaceutical
company, we cannot provide assurance that the end consumer will accept our products. Potential consumers of our
products must:

� believe that our products offer benefits compared to the products that they are currently using;

� use our products and obtain acceptable results;

� believe that our products are worth the price that they will be asked to pay; and

� be willing to commit the time and resources required to change their current purchasing.
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Because we have a limited history of sales and are selling a relatively novel product, we have limited ability to predict
the level of growth or timing in sales of these efforts.
We may have to compete against new technologies developed by competitors. New technologies we develop may not
gain market acceptance by customers, or may not perform to expectations and result in liability to us.
The medical device and pharmaceutical industries are subject to technological change as competitors seek to identify
more effective or cheaper treatments. Our future success will depend on our ability to appropriately respond to
changing technologies and changes in function of products and quality. If we adopt products and technologies that are
not attractive to consumers, we may not be successful in capturing or retaining a significant share of our market. In
addition, some new technologies are relatively untested and unperfected and may not perform as expected or as
desired, in which event our adoption of such products or technologies may cause us to lose money in extended
development costs or product liability claims.
We may face product liability claims that could result in costly litigation and significant liabilities.
The manufacture and sale of dietary supplement, medical and pharmaceutical products entail significant risk of
product liability claims. Any product liability claims, with or without merit, could result in costly litigation, reduced
sales, cause us to incur significant liabilities and divert our management�s time, attention and resources. Because of our
limited operating history and lack of experience with these claims, we cannot be sure that our product liability
insurance coverage is adequate or that it will continue to be available to us on acceptable terms, if at all.
Our products and our manufacturing activities are subject to extensive governmental regulation that could prevent
us from selling our products in the United States or introducing new and improved products.
Our products and our manufacturing activities are subject to extensive regulation by a number of governmental
agencies, including the FDA and comparable international agencies. We are required to:

� obtain the clearance of the FDA and international agencies before we can market and sell our products;

� satisfy these agencies� content requirements for all of our labeling, sales and promotional materials; and

� undergo rigorous inspections by these agencies.
Compliance with the regulations of these agencies may delay or prevent us from introducing any new model of our
existing products or other new products. Furthermore, we may be subject to sanctions, including temporary or
permanent suspension of operations, product recalls and marketing restrictions if we fail to comply with the laws and
regulations pertaining to our business. We are also required to demonstrate compliance with the FDA�s quality system
regulations. The FDA enforces its quality system regulations through pre-approval and periodic post-approval
inspections. These regulations relate to product testing, vendor qualification, design control and quality assurance, as
well as the maintenance of records and documentation. If we are unable to conform to these regulations, the FDA may
take actions which could seriously harm our business. In addition, government regulation may be established that
could prevent, delay, modify or rescind regulatory clearance or approval of our products.
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Our securities trade on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board, which may not provide liquidity for our investors and
may increase volatility in our stock price.
Our common stock is quoted on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board. The Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board is an
inter-dealer, over-the-counter market that provides significantly less liquidity than the NASDAQ Stock Market or
other national exchanges. Securities traded on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board are usually thinly traded, and as a
consequence exhibit a broader spread between the bid and ask price than stock traded on national exchanges.
Securities traded on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board can be highly volatile, have fewer market makers, and may
not be followed by analysts.
Our stock price may be volatile and you may not be able to sell your shares for more than what you paid.
Our stock price is likely to be subject to significant volatility and you may not be able to sell shares of common stock
at or above the price you paid for them. The market price of our common stock could continue to fluctuate in the
future in response to various factors including:

� quarterly variations in operating results;

� our ability to control costs and improve cash flow;

� the occurrence of unanticipated costs or liabilities;

� announcements of technological innovations or new products by us or our competitors; and

� changes in investor perceptions.
The stock market in general has continued to experience volatility, which may further affect our stock price. As such,
you may not be able to resell your shares of common stock at or above the price you paid for them.
Our common stock is subject to penny stock rules.
Our common stock is subject to Rule 15g-1 through 15g-9 under the Exchange Act, which imposes certain sales
practice requirements on broker-dealers which sell our common stock to persons other than established customers and
�accredited investors� (generally, individuals with a net worth in excess of $1 million or annual incomes exceeding
$200,000 or $300,000 thousand together with their spouses). For transactions covered by this rule, a broker-dealer
must make a special suitability determination for the purchaser and have received the purchaser�s written consent to the
transaction prior to the sale. This rule adversely affects the ability of broker-dealers to sell our common stock and
purchasers of our common stock to sell their shares of such common stock.
Additionally, our common stock is subject to the SEC regulations for �penny stock.� Penny stock includes any equity
security that is not listed on a national exchange and has a market price of less than $5.00 per share, subject to certain
exceptions. The regulations require that prior to any non-exempt buy/sell transaction in a penny stock, a disclosure
schedule set forth by the SEC relating to the penny stock market must be delivered to the purchaser of such penny
stock. This disclosure must include the amount of commissions payable to both the broker-dealer and the registered
representative and current price quotations for the common stock. The regulations also require that monthly
statements be sent to holders of penny stock which disclose recent price information for the penny stock and
information of the limited market for penny stocks. These requirements adversely affect the market liquidity of our
common stock.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.
As a smaller reporting company we are not required to provide this information.
Item 2. Properties.
The corporate and manufacturing offices are currently located at 1620 Beacon Place, Oxnard, CA 93033. The space
consists of approximately 25,000 square feet and is under lease through January 2015. The basic monthly rent is
approximately $16,000, subject to adjustment annually on the basis of 3% per annum.
Item 3. Legal Proceedings.
From time to time, we become subject to legal proceedings and claims, both asserted and unasserted, that arise in the
ordinary course of business. Litigation in general, and securities litigation in particular, can be expensive and
disruptive to normal business operations. Moreover, the results of legal proceedings are difficult to predict. An
unfavorable resolution of one or more of these lawsuits would materially adversely affect our business, results of
operations, or financial condition. The need to defend any such claims could require payments of legal fees and our
limited financial resources could severely impact our ability to defend any such claims.
At December 31, 2009 we were party to three significant litigation matters, the Gatorade matter, the Kusher matter
and the Schering Plough matter. There have been no material developments in any of these matters since we last
reported on them in our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2009.

PART II
Item 4. Market for Registrant�s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity

Securities.
Our common stock trades publicly on the OTC Bulletin Board under the symbol �HSPO.� The following table sets forth
the high and low bid prices per share of our common stock by the OTC Bulletin Board for the periods indicated as
reported on the OTC Bulletin Board.

High Low
2009
Fourth Quarter $ 0.21 $ 0.10
Third Quarter $ 0.30 $ 0.15
Second Quarter $ 0.52 $ 0.19
First Quarter $ 0.63 $ 0.16

2008
Fourth Quarter $ 0.89 $ 0.05
Third Quarter $ 0.25 $ 0.08
Second Quarter $ 0.52 $ 0.14
First Quarter $ 0.64 $ 0.31
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Quotations for the OTC Bulletin Board are market quotations, based on calendar quarters, that reflect inter-dealer
prices without retail mark-up, mark-down or commission and may not necessarily represent actual transactions.
Holders
At March 25, 2010, there were approximately 836 registered holders of record of our common stock with
approximately 30% of our shares in the public float.
Dividends
We have never paid cash dividends on our common stock and intend to utilize current and future resources to
implement our plan of operations. We do not anticipate that we will pay cash dividends on our common stock in the
foreseeable future.
Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans
The information required by this item will be contained in our definitive proxy statement to be filed with the SEC in
connection with our 2010 annual meeting of stockholders and is incorporated in this report by reference.
Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
Other than what is reported in our previous quarterly reports on Form 10-Qs and current reports on Form 8-Ks, we
issued the following unregistered securities during the fourth quarter:
On October 15, 2009, we issued 638,298 shares of our common stock pursuant to the stock subscription agreement
with SMI Manufacturing, LLC in exchange for the payment of $150,000.
All of the shares issued were sold pursuant to an exemption from registration under Section 4(2) promulgated under
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.
Item 5. Selected Financial Data.
As a smaller reporting company we are not required to provide this information.
Item 6. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
Overview
We develop and manufacture proprietary, oral thin film products containing nutraceutical and pharmaceutical actives.
We report our operations in a single reporting segment.
We distribute our products primarily through distributors. Revenue from product sales is recognized when the related
goods are shipped and all significant obligations have been satisfied. Revenue from services is recognized when the
services are performed.
We manufacture our products at our own manufacturing facility in Oxnard, California. In addition we have entered
into a Manufacturing Agreement with SMI. Under the terms of the Manufacturing Agreement, the Company has
granted SMI a non-exclusive license to manufacture certain of the Company�s proprietary edible film-strip products.
SMI is granted a right of first negotiation for the manufacture of Products, the pricing and terms of which will be
established on a product by product basis.
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Recent developments
In August 2009, our InnoZen subsidiary entered into a Manufacturing License Agreement (the �Manufacturing
Agreement�) with SMI. Under the terms of the Manufacturing Agreement, the Company has granted SMI a
non-exclusive license to manufacture certain of the Company�s proprietary edible film-strip products. SMI is granted a
right of first negotiation for the manufacture of Products, the pricing and terms of which will be established on a
product by product basis. Both parties have granted the other a right of first negotiation in the event either
contemplates a change in control transaction. In consideration of the rights granted to SMI by InnoZen, SMI shall pay
$150,000 to InnoZen upon execution of this agreement where as $100,000 has been paid and $50,000 shall be paid
within ninety (90) days of execution of the Manufacturing Agreement. SMI has also agreed to purchase an aggregate
of 4,255,320 shares of the Company�s common stock at a purchase price of $1 million or $0.235 per share. Payment of
the purchase price is to be made on the basis of $150,000 on signing the agreement, $150,000 on each of
September 15, October 15 and November 15, 2009 and the remaining $400,000 is to be paid on or before
December 31, 2009. SMI has made payments totaling $450,000. The subscription agreement has been cancelled due
to the closing of a subsequent Stock Purchase Agreement discussed below.
During September 2009 we amended senior secured convertible promissory notes in the principal amount of $625,000
by extending the maturity date to March 31, 2010 and waiving any default. We have not yet amended the remaining
$450,000 of aggregate principal amount of promissory notes under the secured convertible debenture and continue to
be in default on this aggregate amount.
On December 1, 2009, we completed SMI Financing in which we sold 66,666,667 shares (the �Shares�) of our common
stock to SMI, pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement. In connection with the completion of the SMI Financing and
in accordance with the Stock Purchase Agreement, SMI paid to us $2,000,000 and issued a promissory note (the
�Promissory Note�) to us in the amount of $8,000,000. The Promissory Note was originally payable in five installments
as follows:

� $500,000 on or before November 15, 2009 (paid on December 1, 2009);

� $400,000 on or before December 31, 2009;

� $1,650,000 on or before February 28, 2010;

� $2,500,000 on or before April 30, 2010; and

� $2,950,000 on or before June 30, 2010.
The Promissory Note matures on June 30, 2010 and will accrue interest at the rate of 4% per annum. The Company
issued and delivered 13,333,333 shares of our common stock to SMI at the time of closing. The remaining shares were
issued in the name of SMI and are being held in escrow pursuant to a Stock Pledge Agreement. The Pledge
Agreement provides for a partial release of shares as payments are made under the Promissory Note.
In addition to the issuance of the 66,666,667 shares of common stock, the Stock Purchase Agreement provides for the
issuance of additional shares of common stock, with or without additional consideration, in the event of conversion of
outstanding convertible securities, the incursion in undisclosed liabilities, and certain other dilutive issuances.

-19-

Edgar Filing: Healthsport, Inc. - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 24



Table of Contents

In connection with the Stock Purchase Agreement, we entered into a separation agreements with certain of our Board
members and our executive officers, which become effective upon closing of the SMI Financing. Under the terms of
those separation agreements, (i) Messrs Durschlag, Seaber and Wattenberg resigned as Board members and executed a
release of claims against the Company, and (ii) Messrs. Burns and Kelly terminated certain consulting agreements
with the Company and executed a release of claims against the Company. In exchange, we agreed to pay each certain
severance compensation that was expensed in the fourth quarter.
Subsequent Events
On March 19, 2010, we entered into amendments to three agreements with SMI including (a) an amendment to stock
purchase agreement (�SPA Amendment�), (b) an amendment to promissory note (�Note Amendment�) and (c) an
amendment to stock pledge agreement (�Pledge Agreement Amendment� and collectively with the SPA Amendment
and Note Amendment, the �Amendments�). The Amendments amend the terms of the Stock Purchase Agreement,
Promissory Note and Stock Pledge Agreement (collectively, the �SMI Financing Agreements�) that we entered into with
SMI in connection with the SMI Financing. The Amendments extend the payment terms under the promissory note to
September 15, 2010 in exchange for SMI committing to provide interim financing to cover certain of our operating
and capital expenses, and making a portion of its payment obligations recourse obligations, as discussed in more detail
below.
The Note Amendment amends the schedule of the installment payments under the promissory note to be as follows:

� $500,000 on or before November 15, 2009 (previously paid);

� $2,050,000 on or before May 15, 2010;

� $2,500,000 on or before July 15, 2010;

� $2,950,000 on or before September 15, 2010; and

� all remaining principal and interest due on September 15, 2010.
In addition, if prior to payment of the May 15, 2010 installment we have insufficient funds to pay (a) our accounts
payable as of March 19, 2010, under the Note Amendment (b) any obligations incurred in the ordinary course of
business after March 19, 2010 or (c) any payments due related to the improvements to our Oxnard plant, SMI is
obligated to advance us sufficient funds to make those payments. SMI�s obligation to make advances for expense
reimbursement under clause (a) and (b) above is limited to an aggregate of $1,000,000 and its obligation under clause
(c) is limited to an aggregate of $700,000. Any such advance payments will be credited against the May 15, 2010
payment obligation under the promissory note.
Finally, the Promissory Note originally provided that the payment obligations were non-recourse and that we were
limited to a foreclosure action pursuant to the pledge agreement and removal of SMI�s director appointees from our
board of directors as our exclusive remedies for SMI�s breach of its obligations under the promissory note.
Consequently, if SMI failed to make a payment under the promissory note, we could recover the common stock from
the stock pledge agreement, but could not sue SMI to collect the payment due. The Note Amendment modifies
Section 10 to provide that if SMI fails to make a scheduled payment under the promissory note and such failure
continues for a period of two days then SMI is obligated to pay us an amount in cash so that the amount of money
available in our corporate bank account equals $500,000. The obligation to pay up to $500,000 is a recourse obligation
and we can bring an action to collect the payment due. Upon payment, SMI would be entitled to a release of shares
from the stock pledge agreement at the rate of $0.15 per share. The purpose of this provision is to provide us with
capital to continue operations while we seek additional needed capital.
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The Pledge Agreement Amendment conforms the share release provisions to coincide with the new payment terms
under the promissory note and amends the non-recourse debt provisions to conform to the limited recourse obligations
under Section 10 of the Note.
The SPA Amendment confers upon SMI certain additional rights to negotiate and compromise our obligations to
vendors and debt holders, subject to certain guidelines. The amount of any payments that SMI makes pursuant to this
right will be credited to its payment obligations under the promissory note and shares of our common stock will be
released from the stock pledge agreement at the rate of $0.15 per share.
The SPA Amendment also adds a provision to the stock purchase agreement requiring SMI to provide consulting
services to us in connection with the improvements to and cGMP certifications for our Oxnard plant. SMI will receive
compensation for the consulting services in amounts that are pre-approved by our CEO and President and to be paid in
cash or shares of our common stock valued at the rate of $0.15 per share. In the event that SMI�s designees fail to
constitute a majority of our board of directors for any reason, SMI shall have a right to payment of all unpaid
consulting fees in cash and repayment of any expenses advanced for construction of the Oxnard facility under the
promissory note (as described above). In the event of such a demand, we have agreed to promptly deliver a short term
promissory note to SMI evidencing our repayment obligation. Payments under the short-term note shall start no earlier
than four months after SMI makes demand for payment. We have agreed to secure our payment obligation under the
short term note with a lien on all of our assets subject to senior security interests. To the extent that we have
previously released shares of common stock to SMI from the stock pledge agreement on the basis of expenses
advanced for our Oxnard facility, SMI will reconvey any such released shares to us for cancellation.
Critical Accounting Policies
To prepare our consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, we
must make complex and subjective judgments in the selection and application of accounting policies. The accounting
policies that we believe are most critical to the portrayal of our financial condition and results of operations are listed
below. We believe these policies require our most difficult, subjective and complex judgments in estimating the effect
of inherent uncertainties. This section should be read in conjunction with Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements.
Intangible asset valuation
The determination of the fair value of certain acquired assets and liabilities is subjective in nature and often involves
the use of significant estimates and assumptions. Determining the fair values and useful lives of intangible assets
requires the exercise of judgment. We may use our common stock to acquire assets and may use the Black-Scholes
valuation method or another acceptable method to determine a valuation for the stock. The Black-Scholes valuation
method incorporates a volatility factor for the stock price and extrapolates a valuation using these criteria. This
valuation method has generally proven effective for companies with established markets for their common stock;
however, due to the lack of an established trading market for our common stock, in the opinion of management, this
may result in an unduly high valuation for the stock.
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Goodwill
We evaluate the recoverability of goodwill and intangibles assets with infinite useful lives annually in the fourth
quarter or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances, such as declines in sales, earnings or cash flows, or
material adverse changes in the business climate, indicate that the carrying value of a reporting unit might be
impaired. Goodwill is reviewed for potential impairment using a two-step process. In step 1, companies are required
to estimate fair value of their reporting units, which may be done using various methodologies. If its estimated fair
value exceeds its carrying value, the reporting unit is not impaired, and no further analysis is performed. Otherwise,
the amount of the impairment must be determined in step 2 of the goodwill impairment test. In step 2, the implied fair
value of goodwill is determined by assigning a fair value to all of the reporting unit�s assets and liabilities, including
any unrecognized intangible assets, as if the reporting unit had been acquired in a business combination at fair value.
If the carrying amount of the reporting unit�s goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill, an impairment
loss would be recognized in an amount equal to that excess.
Long-lived assets
We continually monitor events and circumstances that could indicate carrying amounts of long-lived assets, including
property, plant, equipment and intangible assets, may not be recoverable. When such events or changes in
circumstances occur, we assess recoverability of long-lived assets, other than goodwill, by determining whether the
carrying value of such assets will be recovered through undiscounted expected future cash flows. If the total of the
undiscounted future cash flows is less than the carrying amount of those assets, we recognize an impairment loss
based on the excess of the carrying amount over the fair value of the asset, or discounted estimated future cash flows if
fair value is not readily determinable.
Stock-based compensation
We measure stock-based compensation cost at the date of grant based on the fair value of the award, which is
recognized as an expense generally on a straight-line basis over the employee�s or consultant�s requisite service period
with an equal amount recorded as additional paid in capital, net of income tax benefit, if any, until such time as the
fair value has been fully recognized. We estimate the fair value of options granted on the date of grant using the
Black-Scholes option-pricing model. This option valuation model requires input of highly subjective assumptions.
Because our stock options have characteristics significantly different from those of traded options, and because
changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in management�s opinion, the
existing model may not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of fair value of our stock options.
Valuation of Derivative Liabilities
We have issued convertible secured notes in 2008. The convertible notes require us to record the value of the
conversion feature as a liability, at fair value, pursuant to FASB accounting rules, including provisions in the notes
that protect the holders from declines in the Company�s stock price, which is considered outside the control of the
Company. The derivative liabilities are marked-to-market each reporting period and changes in fair value are recorded
as a non-operating gain or loss in our statement of operations, until they are completely settled. The fair value of the
conversion feature is determined each reporting period using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, and is affected
by changes in inputs to that model including our stock price, expected stock price volatility, interest rates and
expected term.
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Results of Operations
The following table sets forth certain selected condensed consolidated statement of operations data for the periods
indicated:

2009 2008

Revenue
Product sales $ 2,215,181 $ 1,419,210
License fees, royalties and services 387,400 75,000

Total revenues 2,602,581 1,494,210

Costs and expenses
Cost of product sold and manufacturing costs 2,316,368 1,472,299
Inventory obsolescence 437,825 661,444
General and administrative expense 3,489,686 2,911,075
Marketing and selling expense 438,604 1,586,966
Asset impairment 16,991,425 698,600
Non-cash compensation expense 25,590 2,823,530
Depreciation and amortization expense 1,331,310 1,366,451
Research and development costs 78,754 119,496

Total costs and expenses 25,109,562 11,639,861

Net loss from operations (22,506,981) (10,145,651)

Other income (expense):
Interest income 26,139 1,737
Settlement income 444,181 �
Change in fair value of derivative liability 3,302,329 �
Other income 70,115 55,950
Gain on sale of subsidiary � 869,453
Gain on sale of trademark � 300,000
Interest expense (359,297) (199,826)

Other income (expense) 3,483,467 1,027,314

Net loss before income taxes and non-controlling interest (19,023,514) (9,118,337)
Provision for income taxes � �

Net loss before non-controlling interest (19,023,514) (9,118,337)
Non-controlling interest � 165,216

Net loss $ (19,023,514) $ (8,953,121)
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Revenues
In 2009, product sales increased by $795,971 or 56% compared to the 2008 product sales. The majority of the increase
is from sales to one of our primary customers, T Lynn, where sales increased to $1,758,786 in 2009 compared to
$315,114 in 2008. The majority of the sales to T Lynn did not commence until the December 2008. In addition, the
Company experienced a decrease in total sales in 2009 of $615,926 from two of our other primary customers
compared to 2008 sales.
Although strong during the first half of 2009, sales to T Lynn significantly decreased in the second half of the year.
This was due to a severe downturn in T Lynn�s business and resulting lack of purchase orders from T Lynn. We
terminated our distribution agreement with T Lynn effective March 22, 2010.
License fees, royalties and services increased by $312,400 compared to 2008 primarily due to the company
recognizing deferred license fee income of $335,417 during 2009.
Costs and Expenses
Cost of product sold and manufacturing costs
Cost of product sold and manufacturing costs amounted to $2,316,368 in 2009 and $1,472,299 in 2008. The 2009
amount includes product cost of $1,193,294 and net unapplied manufacturing costs of $1,123,074. The 2008 amount
included product cost of $945,985 and net unapplied manufacturing costs of $526,314. Production volume
substantially increased at the end of 2008 and into the beginning of 2009; however; the last 6 months of 2009, the
production volume began to decrease and as a result, unapplied manufacturing costs began to increase significantly.
Inventory obsolescence
During 2009, we recorded a provision for obsolete inventory and wrote off expired products and packaging materials
no longer being used for a total of $437,825. During 2008, we wrote-off $661,444 in expired products and packaging
materials that had gone stale or was no longer being used.
General and administrative expenses
General and administrative expenses (�G&A�) consisted of the following major items during the years ended
December 31, 2009 and 2008:

2009 2008
Payroll $ 644,288 $ 1,337,528
Professional fees 1,279,147 653,418
Insurance 108,250 303,217
Separartion agreement payments 497,750 �
Other 960,251 616,912

$ 3,489,686 $ 2,911,075

In total, G&A increased by $587,611 (20%) in 2009 compared to 2008. Below are discussions regarding major
fluctuations in G&A.
Payroll decreased by $693,240 in 2009 as compared to 2008 and is primarily the result of the Company making a
concentrated effort to reduce costs due to the decrease in revenues during the last six months of 2009. The Company
had 43 employees at the beginning of 2009 and only 13 employees by the end of 2009.
Professional fees increased by $625,729 in 2009 from 2008, primarily due to the Company expensing the remaining
balance of prepaid consulting services in 2009 as well as additional legal fees associated with the defense of certain
lawsuits experienced in 2009.
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Insurance decreased by $194,967 in 2009 compared to 2008 and is primarily due to the Company again making an
effort to reduce costs where possible as revenues have decreased over the last 6 months of 2009. The Company was
able to reduce its premium rates in 2009 while maintaining similar coverage as in 2008.
At the end of 2009, the Company entered into separation agreements with certain Board members and executive
officers, which the Company agreed to pay certain compensations. In total the Company paid $497,750 of separation
payments. No such expenses were incurred in 2008.
Other G&A expenses increased by $343,339 in 2009 compared to 2008. The increase is mainly due to the Company
expensing the vested portion of restricted common stock awarded to officers and employees of the Company. No such
transactions occurred during 2008.
Marketing and selling expense
Marketing and selling expenses declined from $1,586,966 in 2008 to $438,604 in 2009. Marketing and selling
expense are down from the previous year, primarily due to the elimination of endorsements, sponsorship and
promotional discount fees as a result of re-directing our marketing efforts toward distributors rather than direct sales to
customers and the elimination of the New York office. In addition, product promotional expenses decreased by
$746,130 from $749,087 in 2008 to $2,957 in 2009.
Asset impairment
Due to a significant reduction in business volume and a decline in the quoted market price of the Company�s stock
during the year ended December 31, 2009, management determined that the fair value of certain of the Company�s
intangible assets had declined. Based on management�s analysis, the Company recorded an impairment loss of
$10,276,948 for goodwill and an impairment loss of $6,714,477 for the net carrying value of our patents, trade secrets
and web site during the year ended December 31, 2009. For the year ended December 31, 2008, the Company
recorded an impairment loss of $648,600 for the net carrying value of its client list and recorded an impairment loss of
$50,000 for the remaining goodwill associated with its wholly-owned subsidiary.
Non-cash compensation expense
Non-cash compensation decreased from $2,823,530 in 2008 to $25,590 in 2009 and includes the amortization of the
grant date fair value of stock options granted to employees, consultants and spokespersons over the relevant service
periods. The decline is primarily the result of options expiring in the 2008 period as well as majority of stock options
becoming fully vested during the 2008 period.
Depreciation and amortization
Depreciation and amortization decreased to $1,331,310 in 2009 from $1,366,451 in 2008, primarily due to the
impairment of the client list in June of 2008. The client list amortization was included in the 2008 period, but not in
the 2009 period. However, the increase in the depreciation of our property and equipment substantially offset the
decrease in the amortization of our intangibles.
Research and Development Costs
Research and development costs amounted to $78,754 in 2009 and $119,496 in 2008. These costs include contract
services, supplies, materials and analytical testing costs incurred for new products to be developed by the Company.
Research and development costs have declined due to a limitation of available funding.
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Other Income (Expense)
Settlement income
During 2009, the Company was able to settle with a former customer, which resulted in a gain of $440,331. During
2008, the Company did not incur any such transactions.
Change in fair value of derivative liability
We issued convertible secured notes in 2008. Certain provisions of the convertible notes require us to record the value
of the conversion feature as a liability, at fair value, pursuant to FASB accounting rules, including provisions in the
notes that protect the holders from declines in our stock price, which is considered outside the control of the
Company. The derivative liability is marked-to-market each reporting period and changes in fair value are recorded as
a non-operating gain or loss in our statement of operations, until they are completely settled. The fair value of the
conversion feature is determined each reporting period using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, and is affected
by changes in inputs to that model including our stock price, expected stock price volatility, interest rates and
expected term. Based on the Black-Scholes calculations of the derivative liability at the beginning of 2009 and at the
end of 2009, we recognized a gain of $3,302,329 as the fair value of the derivative liability decreased.
Gain on sale of subsidiary
On February 1, 2008, HealthSport and InnoZen executed a Limited Liability Company Operating Agreement (�LLC
Agreement�) with Migami for PMG. Among other things, the LLC Agreement called for Migami to contribute
$3,000,000 in cash to PMG for its intended 48% ownership, and InnoZen licensed its technology to PMG for its 52%
ownership. The agreement provided that PMG was to manufacture all strip and other products for each member at cost
plus 25%. Migami made a total contribution of $990,000 of its $3,000,000 commitment. Migami�s default resulted in
its loss of rights under the agreement and any rights that were intended to transfer from InnoZen to PMG were
returned to InnoZen. InnoZen sold its interest in PMG for nominal consideration on December 30, 2008, and
recognized a book gain of $869,453 on the transaction. The gain was a result of the Company�s share of losses incurred
by PMG exceeding the Company�s investment by this amount.
Gain on sale of trademark
In 2008, the Company sold its trademark for Enlyten to an affiliate of T Lynn for $300,000 which is to be paid at the
rate of $0.015 per cassette sold pursuant to the distributor agreement. In 2009, no such transaction took place.
Interest expense
Interest expense increased from $199,826 in 2008 to $359,297 in 2009 due to the debt the Company incurred during
2008 and 2009. The Company recognized a full year�s worth of interest expense in 2009 relating to the debts incurred
in 2008 as well as to new debts incurred during 2009.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
At December 31, 2009 we had cash and cash equivalents of $1,205,945, accounts receivable of $64,726 and a working
capital deficit of $3,102,664. This compares to cash and cash equivalents of $433,573, accounts receivable of
$485,967 and a working capital deficit of $2,728,102 at December 31, 2008.
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For the year ended December 31, 2009, operating activities consumed $2,168,970 of cash. This was primarily the
result of a net loss for the year of $19 million, offset by depreciation and amortization of $1,331,310, asset impairment
of $16,991,425 and a gain on change in fair value of derivative liability of $3,302,329.
Investment activities used an additional $523,811 of cash during year ended December 31, 2009, primarily as a result
of payments for patent costs, property and equipment and deposits made on equipment.
Financing activities provided $3,465,153 of cash during the year ended December 31, 2009, primarily as the result
from sales of common stock and proceeds from loans.
We are not currently generating sufficient income or cash flow to fund current operations. Sales of product amounted
to $2,215,181 during year ended December 31, 2009. We are continually analyzing our current costs and are
attempting to make additional cost reductions where possible. However, in order to support our current level of
operations, substantial additional sales will be required. We expect that we will continue incurring losses from
operations throughout 2010.
Other than cash and cash equivalents and cash flows provided by operations, our primary source of working capital
has been financing activities through the sale of debt or equity securities. We do not have any unused sources of credit
presently available to us.
We currently have $450,000 of convertible promissory notes that were due by September 30, 2009 and an additional
$625,000 for which payment is due by March 31, 2010. As of the date of this report, we do not have the funds to
repay these convertible promissory notes. We plan to negotiate with the holders of those notes to extend the terms, and
to repay them from the proceeds of the SMI Financing. However, if we are unsuccessful in extending the term of the
convertible promissory notes, or if we do not receive payment under the SMI Financing, we will not have the capital
resources to repay the convertible promissory notes and their holders may bring action against us to collect on them.
On December 1, 2009, we completed a Stock Purchase Agreement with SMI which provides for SMI to purchase an
aggregate of 66,666,667 shares of our common stock for a purchase price of $10 million or $0.15 per share. SMI paid
$2 million on closing and $8 million through delivery of a promissory note. The Promissory Note, as amended, bears
interest at 4% per annum and matures on September 15, 2010. SMI�s payment obligations under the promissory note
are secured by a pledge of the purchased common stock. We anticipate that the proceeds from the SMI Financing
would be sufficient to meet our operating requirements for at least the next 12 months.
No other arrangements or commitments for any such financing are in place at this time, and we cannot give any
assurances about the availability or terms of any future financing. We believe the recent worldwide financial crisis has
significantly decreased the market for private financing. The number of investment funds committing capital to
microcap issuers has decreased, and costs for financing both debt and equity have increased.
Because of our history of net losses and our negative working capital position, our independent auditors, in their
reports on our financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, expressed substantial doubt
about our ability to continue as a going concern.
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Contractual Obligations and Commitments
The following summarizes our contractual obligations at December 31, 2009 and the effect those obligations are
expected to have on our liquidity and cash flow in future periods (in thousands):

Payments Due by Period
Less than 1 to 3 More than

Contractual Obligations Total 1 year years 4 years
Convertible notes $ 1,554 $ 1,409 $ 145 $ �
Employment contracts 470 470 � �
Operating leases (facilities) 1,051 197 408 446

Sales agreement 160 160 � �

Total $ 3,235 $ 2,236 $ 553 $ 446

We currently have outstanding notes in the amount of $1,554,096 at December 31, 2009. Of this amount $450,000
was due on September 30, 2009 and has not been paid. An amount equal to $625,000 was extended and those notes
are due and payable on March 31, 2010. An additional amount of $479,096 of notes are due and payable on various
dates from September 22, 2009 to April 11, 2011.
We have entered into employment agreement with Robert Davidson, our President, and Thomas Beckett, our Chief
Operating Officer, which provide for severance payments if either is terminated without cause. Consequently, if we
had released either Mr. Davidson or Mr. Beckett without cause as of December 31, 2009, the severance expense
would have been $260,000 or $210,000, respectively.
In 2007, we entered into non-cancelable operating leases for approximately 25,000 square feet of office space for our
corporate and manufacturing offices. The lease term is from December 1, 2007 through January 31, 2015. The basic
monthly rent is approximately $16,000, subject to adjustment annually on the basis of 3% per annum.
On July 14, 2009, we entered into a sales and distribution agreement with Destiny Productions, LLC and Content
Marketing Solutions, Inc. (�Destiny�) pursuant to which the Company shall pay a $20,000 monthly fee to Destiny
subject to certain minimum sales requirements. Such monthly fee shall also be offset against commissions earned by
Destiny under the agreement.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not have any off balance sheet arrangements.
Item 6A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.
As a smaller reporting company we are not required to provide this information.
Item 7. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.
The Consolidated Financial Statements of HealthSport, Inc. and Subsidiaries together with the report thereon of Rose,
Snyder & Jacobs as of December 31, 2009 and for the year ended December 31, 2009 and the report of Creason &
Associates, P.L.L.C as of December 31, 2008 and for the year ended December 31, 2008, is set forth as follows:

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 29

Consolidated Balance Sheets 31

Consolidated Statements of Operations 32

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders� Equity 33

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 34
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of HealthSport, Inc.
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of HealthSport, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the �Company�)
as of December 31, 2009 and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders� equity and cash flows for
the year then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company�s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to
perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal control
over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company�s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of HealthSport, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2009, and the consolidated results of their
operations and their cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as
a going concern. As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, the Company has incurred significant operating
losses and negative cash flows from operations during the year ended December 31, 2009. These conditions raise
substantial doubt about the Company�s ability to continue as a going concern. Management�s plans regarding those
matters also are described in Note 2. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from
the outcome of this uncertainty.
/s/ Rose, Snyder & Jacobs
Rose, Snyder & Jacobs
A Corporation of Certified Public Accountants
Encino, California
March 30, 2010
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CREASON & ASSOCIATES, P.L.L.C.
7170 S. Braden Ave., Suite 100

Tulsa, OK 74136-6333

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
HealthSport, Inc. and Subsidiaries:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of HealthSport, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2008, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders� equity and cash flows for the
year ended December 31, 2008. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company�s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we
engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company�s internal control
over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall consolidated
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of HealthSport, Inc. and Subsidiaries at December 31, 2008, and the results of their operations and
their cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2008, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that HealthSport, Inc. and
Subsidiaries will continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 14 of the December 31, 2008 consolidated
financial statements, HealthSport, Inc. has incurred significant operating losses, negative cash flow from operations
and a working capital deficit. There can be no assurance that the Company can obtain sufficient revenues and cash
flows to fund its operations and commitments. These conditions raise substantial doubt about HealthSport, Inc.�s
ability to continue as a going concern. Management�s plans regarding these matters are also described in Note 14 of the
December 31, 2008 consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements do not include any
adjustments that may result from the outcome of these uncertainties.

/s/ Creason & Associates, P.L.L.C.

Tulsa, Oklahoma
April 22, 2009
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HEALTHSPORT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets

Decmeber 31,
2009

December 31,
2008

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,205,945 $ 433,573
Accounts receivable (less allowance of $12,000 in 2009 and $2,000 in
2008) 64,726 486,967
Inventory, net 106,532 585,746
Prepaid expenses and other assets 200,757 293,318

Total current assets 1,577,960 1,799,604
Property and equipment, net 770,233 756,086
Non-current accounts receivable � 225,000
Goodwill � 10,276,948
Patent costs and other intangible assets, net 10,832,424 18,621,760
Other assets 338,106 137,170

Total assets $ 13,518,723 $ 31,816,568

Liabilities and Stockholders� Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 1,575,116 $ 1,462,148
Accrued expenses 651,865 900,837
Current portion of capital lease obligation, Note 9 70,512 64,465
Current portion of convertible promissory notes, Note 6 1,409,450 1,268,000
Deferred revenue 358,193 832,256
Stock subscription liability 536,222 �
Derivative liability 79,266 �

Total current liabilities 4,680,624 4,527,706
Convertible promissory notes, Note 9 144,646 277,450
Capital lease obligation, Note 7 203,677 274,727

Total liabilities 5,028,947 5,079,883

Commitments and contingencies, Note 14

Stockholders� equity:
Preferred stock: $2.75 par value; authorized 2,000,000 shares; no
shares issued and outstanding � �
Common stock: $0.0001 par value; authorized 500,000,000 shares;
122,082,717 and 49,366,120 shares issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively 12,208 4,937
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Additional paid-in capital 77,511,178 69,241,844
Stock Subscription Receivable (7,500,250) (250)
Accumulated deficit (61,533,360) (42,509,846)

Total stockholders� equity 8,489,776 26,736,685

Total liabilities and stockholders� equity $ 13,518,723 $ 31,816,568

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HEALTHSPORT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Operations
Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

2009 2008

Revenue
Product sales $ 2,215,181 $ 1,419,210
License fees, royalties and services 387,400 75,000

Total revenues 2,602,581 1,494,210

Costs and expenses
Cost of product sold and manufacturing costs 2,316,368 1,472,299
Inventory obsolescence 437,825 661,444
General and administrative expense 3,489,686 2,911,075
Marketing and selling expense 438,604 1,586,966
Asset impairment 16,991,425 698,600
Non-cash compensation expense 25,590 2,823,530
Depreciation and amortization expense 1,331,310 1,366,451
Research and development costs 78,754 119,496

Total costs and expenses 25,109,562 11,639,861

Net loss from operations (22,506,981) (10,145,651)

Other income (expense):
Interest income 26,139 1,737
Settlement income 444,181 �
Change in fair value of derivative liability 3,302,329 �
Other income 70,115 55,950
Gain on sale of subsidiary � 869,453
Gain on sale of trademark � 300,000
Interest expense (359,297) (199,826)

Other income (expense) 3,483,467 1,027,314

Net loss before income taxes and non-controlling interest (19,023,514) (9,118,337)
Provision for income taxes � �

Net loss before non-controlling interest (19,023,514) (9,118,337)
Non-controlling interest � 165,216

Net loss $ (19,023,514) $ (8,953,121)

Net loss per share, basic and diluted $ (0.35) $ (0.20)

Edgar Filing: Healthsport, Inc. - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 40



Weighted average shares outstanding, basic and diluted 53,603,158 45,009,843

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HEALTHSPORT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders� Equity
Years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

Additional Stock
Common Stock Paid-in Subscription Accumulated
Shares Par Capital Receivable Deficit Total

Balance, December 31,
2007 42,898,397 $ 4,290 $ 65,120,144 $ � $ (33,556,725) $ 31,567,709
Common stock issued
for:
Cash 2,276,000 228 816,272 � � 816,500
Services 1,585,000 159 325,591 � � 325,750
Accounts payable 1,000,327 100 243,598 � � 243,698
Notes payable and
accrued interest 693,334 69 103,931 � � 104,000
Acquisition of assets 300,000 30 74,970 � � 75,000
Loan fees 533,333 53 79,947 � � 80,000
Common stock option
amortization � � 2,434,378 � � 2,434,378
Common stock
warrants:
Issued � � 43,021 � � 43,021
Exercised 79,729 8 (8) � � �
Stock subscription
receivable � � � (500) � (500)
Collection of stock
subscription receivable � � � 250 � 250
Net loss � � � � (8,953,121) (8,953,121)

Balance, December 31,
2008 49,366,120 $ 4,937 $ 69,241,844 $ (250) $ (42,509,846) $ 26,736,685

Reclassification of
derivative liability (3,252,341) (3,252,341)
Common stock issued
for:
Cash 18,981,560 1,897 3,029,260 � � 3,031,157
Services (includes
$226,494 of warrants) 900,000 90 539,404 � � 539,494
Accounts payable 350,000 35 62,727 � � 62,762
Conversion of notes
payable and accrued
interest 1,485,037 149 222,607 � � 222,756
Separation payments 1,000,000 100 149,900 � � 150,000
Stock subscriptions 50,000,000 5,000 7,495,000 (7,500,000) � �

� � 25,590 � � 25,590
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Common stock option
amortization
Treasury stock (2,813) (2,813)
Net loss � � � � (19,023,514) (19,023,514)

Balance, December 31,
2009 122,082,717 $ 12,208 $ 77,511,178 $ (7,500,250) $ (61,533,360) $ 8,489,776

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HEALTHSPORT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

2009 2008

Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss $ (19,023,514) $ (8,953,121)
Adjustment to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Non-controlling interest � (165,216)
Amortization of non-cash stock compensation 25,590 2,434,378
Amortization of loan discount 129,254 �
Depreciation and amortization 1,331,310 1,366,451
Common stock issued for services 455,222 325,250
Common stock issued for separation agreements 150,000 �
Inventory obsolescence reserve 437,825 661,444
Asset impairment 16,991,425 698,600
Bad debt expense 34,403 �
(Gain) loss on sale of assets 1,004 (5,584)
Gain on debt settlement (444,181) �
Change in fair value of derivative liability (3,302,329) �
Warrants issued 226,494 43,021
Gain on sale of trademark � (300,000)
Gain on sale of subsidiary � (869,453)
Change in other assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 387,838 (304,655)
Inventory 41,389 155,340
Prepaid expenses and other assets 366,022 302,779
Accounts payable 219,580 793,338
Accrued expenses 277,761 761,684
Deferred revenue (474,063) 164,416

Net cash used in operating activities (2,168,970) (2,891,328)

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets � 4,297
Patent costs incurred (59,887) (31,161)
Acquisition of property and equipment (206,923) (265,533)
Deposits made on equipment (257,001) �

Net cash used in investing activities (523,811) (292,397)

Cash flows from financing activities
Collect stock subscription receivable � 22,750
Funding from joint venture partner � 990,000
Loan repayments � (125,000)
Proceeds from loans 105,000 1,770,450
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Capital lease payments (65,004) (24,725)
Sale of common stock 3,425,157 816,500

Net cash provided by financing activities 3,465,153 3,449,975

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 772,372 266,250
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 433,573 167,323

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 1,205,945 $ 433,573

(Continued)
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HEALTHSPORT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

2009 2008
(Continued)

Supplemental cash flow information

Cash paid for interest and income taxes:
Interest $ 174,671 $ 32,349
Income taxes � �

Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Conversion of accounts payable and accrued interest into long-term debt 44,647 �
Common stock issued for notes payable and accrued interest 222,756 104,000
Common stock issued for accounts payable 62,762 243,698
Common stock issued for stock subscription receivable 7,500,000 250
Common stock issued for loan fees � 80,000
Common stock issued for equipment maintenance � 75,000
Value of common stock warrants and options granted 226,494 494,812
Cash-less exercise of common stock warrants � 14,340
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HEALTHSPORT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1: DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS
We are a company specializing in the development and manufacture of proprietary, oral thin film products containing
nutraceutical and pharmaceutical actives. Our thin film dissolves rapidly and utilizes patent pending �bi-layer�
technology and other novel processes, including proprietary micro-encapsulation methods to mask the taste of actives
in the film products. The result of this superior technology is higher quality, more stable products that support a
platform capable of carrying larger product volumes and a more diverse array of active ingredients. We believe these
qualities render our thin film effective, easy to use and suited for a multitude of consumer products in both the dietary
supplement and pharmaceutical arenas.
We currently manufacture and distribute a number of nutritional supplement products formulated to contain
electrolytes, vitamins, melatonin, caffeine, and other supplements. We are also currently conducting research and
development related to future potential products that will contain over-the-counter and prescription drug actives.
NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principles of consolidation and basis of presentation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of HealthSport, Inc. (�HealthSport�) and its wholly-owned
active subsidiaries, Enlyten, Inc. (�Enlyten�), InnoZen, Inc. (�InnoZen�), InnoZen�s majority owned subsidiary Pacific
Manufacturing Group, LLC (�PMG�) until its sale on December 30, 2008, Health Strip Solutions, LLC (�Health Strip�)
and HealthSport Nutraceutical Products, Inc. (�Nutraceutical�), collectively referred to as �the Company,� �we,� �us,� or �the
Companies�. All significant inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The
Company�s film strip product represents the principal continuing operations of the Company.
Use of estimates
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.
Going Concern
Our financial statements have been prepared on the basis that we will continue as a going concern. At December 31,
2009 and 2008, we had current assets of $1,577,960 and $1,799,604; current liabilities of $4,680,624 and $4,527,706;
and a working capital deficit of $3,102,664 and $2,728,102, respectively. We incurred a loss of $19,023,514 during
2009, which included asset impairments of $16,991,425 and depreciation and amortization of $1,331,310.
The Company is not currently generating sufficient income or cash flow to fund current operations. Sales of product
amounted to $2,215,181 during the year-ended December 31, 2009. The Company is continually analyzing its current
costs and is attempting to make additional cost reductions where possible. However, in order to support the Company�s
current level of operations, substantial additional sales will be required. We expect that we will continue to generate
losses from operations throughout 2010.
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Other than cash and cash equivalents and cash flow provided by operations, our primary source of working capital has
been financing activities through the sale of debt or equity securities.
On December 1, 2009, the Company completed the sale of 66,666,667 shares (the �Shares�) of our common stock (the
�SMI Financing�) to SMI, pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement between the Company and SMI dated as of
November 6, 2009 (the �Stock Purchase Agreement�). In connection with the completion of the SMI Financing and in
accordance with the Stock Purchase Agreement, SMI paid to the Company $2,000,000 and issued a promissory note
(the �Promissory Note�) to the Company in the amount of $8,000,000. The Promissory Note will be payable in five
installments as follows:

� $500,000 on or before November 15, 2009 (paid on December 1, 2009);
� $400,000 on or before December 31, 2009;
� $1,650,000 on or before February 28, 2010;
� $2,500,000 on or before April 30, 2010; and
� $2,950,000 on or before June 30, 2010.

The Promissory Note will mature on June 30, 2010 and will accrue interest at the rate of 4% per annum. The
Company issued and delivered 13,333,333 shares of our common stock to SMI at the time of closing. The remaining
shares will be issued in the name of SMI but will be held in escrow pursuant to a Stock Pledge Agreement. The Pledge
Agreement provides for a partial release of shares as payments are made under the Promissory Note. See Note 15 for
information relating to the amendments for the Stock Purchase Agreement, Promissory Note and Stock Pledge
Agreement.
These conditions raise substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern. Because of our historic net
losses, and our negative working capital position, our independent auditors, in their reports on our financial statements
for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, expressed substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going
concern. The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, which contemplate continuation of the Company as a
going concern. The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and
classification of recorded asset amounts or the amounts and classification of liabilities that could result from the
outcome of this uncertainty.
Revenue recognition
Revenue from product sales is recognized when the related goods are shipped and all significant obligations have been
satisfied. Revenue from services is recognized when the services are performed. The deferred license fee revenue is
recognized when earned and all significant obligations have been satisfied.
Cash and cash equivalents
The Company considers all cash on hand, cash in banks and all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a
maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents. Cash is maintained at financial institutions. The
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (�FDIC�) insures accounts at each institution. However, at times, cash balances
may exceed the FDIC insurance limit. The Company has not experienced losses in such accounts.
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Fair value determination
Financial instruments consist of cash, marketable securities, accounts and notes receivable, accounts payable, accrued
expenses and short-term borrowings. The carrying amount of these financial instruments approximates fair value due
to their short-term nature or the current rates at which the Company could borrow funds with similar remaining
maturities.
Accounts receivable and allowance for doubtful accounts
Receivables are recorded when billed or accrued and represent claims against third parties that will be settled in cash.
The carrying value of receivables, net of the allowance for doubtful accounts, represents their estimated net realizable
value. The Company performs periodic credit evaluation of its customers and generally does not require collateral.
The allowance for doubtful accounts is estimated based on historical collection trends, type of customer, the age of
outstanding receivables and existing economic conditions. If events or changes in circumstances indicate that specific
receivable balances may be impaired, further consideration is given to the collectibility of those balances and the
allowance is adjusted accordingly. Past due receivable balances are written-off when internal collection efforts have
been unsuccessful in collecting the amount due.
Inventory
Inventory consists of raw materials and work-in-process and is stated at the lower of average standard cost or
estimated net realizable value. We value our inventory using the first-in, first out method.
Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are recorded at cost, net of related accumulated depreciation. Depreciation has been provided
using the straight-line method based on the following estimated useful lives:

Office Furniture & Equipment 3 � 7 Years
Computer Software 3 � 5 Years
Manufacturing Equipment 5 � 7 Years
Leasehold Improvements Lesser of the useful life of the asset or the term of the respective lease
Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense when incurred. Betterments and renewals are capitalized. When
property and equipment are sold or otherwise disposed of, the asset account and related accumulated depreciation
account are relieved, and any gain or loss is included in operations.
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Goodwill
We evaluate the recoverability of goodwill and intangibles assets with infinite useful lives annually in the fourth
quarter or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances, such as declines in sales, earnings or cash flows, or
material adverse changes in the business climate, indicate that the carrying value of a reporting unit might be
impaired. Goodwill is reviewed for potential impairment using a two-step process. In step 1, companies are required
to estimate fair value of their reporting units, which may be done using various methodologies. If its estimated fair
value exceeds its carrying value, the reporting unit is not impaired, and no further analysis is performed. Otherwise,
the amount of the impairment must be determined in step 2 of the goodwill impairment test. In step 2, the implied fair
value of goodwill is determined by assigning a fair value to all of the reporting unit�s assets and liabilities, including
any unrecognized intangible assets, as if the reporting unit had been acquired in a business combination at fair value.
If the carrying amount of the reporting unit�s goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill, an impairment
loss would be recognized in an amount equal to that excess.
Intangibles and other long-lived assets
The Company continually monitors events and circumstances that could indicate that the carrying amounts of
long-lived assets, including property, plant, equipment and intangible assets, may not be recoverable. When such
events or changes in circumstances occur, we assess recoverability of long-lived assets, other than goodwill, by
determining whether the carrying value of such assets will be recovered through undiscounted expected future cash
flows. If the total of the undiscounted future cash flows is less than the carrying amount of those assets, we recognize
an impairment loss based on the excess of the carrying amount over the fair value of the asset, or discounted estimated
future cash flows if fair value is not readily determinable.
Patent costs are amortized over their life of seventeen years from the date the patent application is filed. Patent costs
include the costs allocated to the proprietary technology for the formulation of thin film electrolyte strip products and
associated legal costs. Trade secrets include costs allocated to our formulations and are being amortized over
seventeen years.
Stock option plans
Our stock option plans are described in Note 11. We measure stock-based compensation cost at the date of grant based
on the fair value of the award, which is recognized as an expense generally on a straight-line basis over the employee�s
or consultant�s requisite service period with an equal amount recorded as additional paid in capital, net of income tax
benefit, if any, until such time as the fair value has been fully recognized. We estimate the fair value of options
granted on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. This option valuation model requires input
of highly subjective assumptions. Because our stock options have characteristics significantly different from those of
traded options, and because changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate,
in management�s opinion, the existing model may not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of fair value of our
stock options.
Income taxes
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on temporary differences between the financial reporting and
tax bases of assets and liabilities, applying tax rates expected to be enacted for the year in which we expect the
differences will reverse or settle. Based on the evaluation of available evidence, we recognize future tax benefits, such
as net operating loss carryforwards, to the extent that we believe it is more likely than not that we will realize these
benefits. We periodically assess the likelihood that we will be able to recover our deferred tax assets and reflect any
changes in our estimates in the valuation allowance, with a corresponding adjustment to earnings as appropriate. In
assessing a need for a valuation allowance, we look to the future reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
taxable income in carryback years, the feasibility of tax planning strategies and estimate future taxable income.
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Research and development costs
Research and development costs are charged to operations when incurred. The amounts charged to operations during
the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 were $78,754 and $119,496, respectively.
Shipping and handling costs
Shipping and handling costs are reported in selling and marketing costs in the accompanying consolidated statements
of operations. These costs amounted to $50,423 and $122,835 in 2009 and 2008, respectively.
Advertising costs
The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred. The Company recorded advertising costs of $113,189 and
$883,727 for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
Basic and diluted loss per share
Basic loss per share is computed by dividing the net loss to common stockholders for the period by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted loss per share is computed by dividing the
net loss for the period by the weighted average number of common and dilutive common equivalent shares
outstanding during the period. Common equivalent shares, which consists of stock options and warrants, have been
excluded from the diluted loss per share calculation because their effect is anti-dilutive.
Reclassifications
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation.
Recent accounting pronouncements
On January 1, 2009, we adopted changes issued by the FASB to accounting for business combinations. While
retaining the fundamental requirements of accounting for business combinations, including that the purchase method
be used for all business combinations and for an acquirer to be identified for each business combination, these changes
define the acquirer as the entity that obtains control of one or more businesses in the business combination and
establishes the acquisition date as the date that the acquirer achieves control instead of the date that the consideration
is transferred. These changes require an acquirer in a business combination, including business combinations achieved
in stages (step acquisition), to recognize the assets acquired, liabilities assumed, and any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree at the acquisition date, measured at their fair values as of that date, with limited exceptions. This guidance
also requires the recognition of assets acquired and liabilities assumed arising from certain contractual contingencies
as of the acquisition date, measured at their acquisition-date fair values. Additionally, these changes require
acquisition-related costs to be expensed in the period in which the costs are incurred and the services are received
instead of including such costs as part of the acquisition price. We have not engaged in any acquisitions since this new
guidance was issued, so there has been no impact to our consolidated financial statements.
On January 1, 2009, we adopted changes issued by the FASB to accounting for intangible assets. These changes
amend the factors that should be considered in developing renewal or extension assumptions used to determine the
useful life of a recognized intangible asset in order to improve the consistency between the useful life of a recognized
intangible asset outside of a business combination and the period of expected cash flows used to measure the fair
value of an intangible asset in a business combination. The adoption of these changes did not have a material impact
on our consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows, and the required disclosures regarding our
intangible assets.
On January 1, 2009, we adopted changes issued by the FASB to consolidation accounting and reporting that establish
accounting and reporting for the non-controlling interest in a subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary.
This guidance defines a non-controlling interest, previously called a minority interest, as the portion of equity in a
subsidiary not attributable, directly or indirectly, to a parent. These changes require, among other items, that a
non-controlling interest be included in the consolidated balance sheet within equity separate from the parent�s equity;
consolidated net income to be reported at amounts inclusive of both the parent�s and non-controlling interest�s shares
and, separately, the amounts of consolidated net income attributable to the parent and non-controlling interest all on
the consolidated statement of operations; and if a subsidiary is deconsolidated, any retained non-controlling equity
investment in the former subsidiary be measured at fair value and a gain or loss be recognized in net income based on
such fair value. The adoption of these changes had no impact on our consolidated financial statements.
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On January 1, 2009, we adopted changes issued by the FASB to fair value accounting and reporting as it relates to
nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities that are not recognized or disclosed at fair value in the consolidated
financial statements on at least an annual basis. These changes define fair value, establish a framework for measuring
fair value in GAAP, and expand disclosures about fair value measurements. This guidance applies to other GAAP that
require or permit fair value measurements and is to be applied prospectively with limited exceptions. The adoption of
these changes, as it relates to nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities, had no impact on our consolidated
financial statements. These provisions will be applied at such time a fair value measurement of a nonfinancial asset or
nonfinancial liability is required, which may result in a fair value that is materially different than would have been
calculated prior to the adoption of these changes.
On January 1, 2009 we adopted changes issued by the FASB in June 2008 to provide guidance in determining whether
certain financial instruments (or embedded feature) are considered to be �indexed to an entity�s own stock.� Existing
guidance under GAAP considers certain financial instruments to be outside the scope of derivative accounting,
specifying that a contract that would otherwise meet the definition of a derivative but is both (a) indexed to the
Company�s own stock and (b) classified in stockholders� equity in the statement of financial position would not be
considered a derivative financial instrument. These changes provide a new two-step model to be applied in
determining whether a financial instrument or an embedded feature is indexed to an entity�s own stock and thus able to
qualify for the derivative accounting scope exception. These changes had a material impact on our consolidated
financial statements because, under the guidance, the Company was required to record derivative liabilities relating to
the conversion feature on convertible debt instruments. See Note 8 for further discussions.
In June 2009, the FASB issued guidance that establishes the FASB Accounting Standards Codification� (the
�Codification�) as the source of authoritative accounting principles recognized by the FASB to be applied by
nongovernmental entities in the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP). Use of the new Codification is effective for interim and annual periods ending after September 15,
2009. The Company has used the new Codification in reference to GAAP and such use has not impacted the
consolidated results of the Company.
In June 2009, the FASB amended U.S. GAAP with respect to the accounting for transfers of financial assets. These
amendments, among other things, clarified that the objective of U.S. GAAP is to determine whether a transferor and
all of the entities included in the transferor�s financial statements being presented have surrendered control over
transferred financial assets; limited the circumstances in which a financial asset, or portion of a financial asset, should
be derecognized when the transferor has not transferred the entire original financial asset to an entity that is not
consolidated with the transferor in the financial statements being presented and/or when the transferor has continuing
involvement with the transferred financial asset; and removed the concept of a qualifying special-purpose entity. The
Company will be required to adopt these amendments effective January 1, 2010, and is currently evaluating the
potential impact, if any, on its consolidated financial statements.
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In June 2009, the FASB issued changes to the accounting for variable interest entities. These changes require an
enterprise to perform an analysis to determine whether the enterprise�s variable interest or interests give it a controlling
financial interest in a variable interest entity; to require ongoing reassessments of whether an enterprise is the primary
beneficiary of a variable interest entity; to eliminate the quantitative approach previously required for determining the
primary beneficiary of a variable interest entity; to add an additional reconsideration event for determining whether an
entity is a variable interest entity when any changes in facts and circumstances occur such that holders of the equity
investment at risk, as a group, lose the power from voting rights or similar rights of those investments to direct the
activities of the entity that most significantly impact the entity�s economic performance; and to require enhanced
disclosures that will provide users of financial statements with more transparent information about an enterprise�s
involvement in a variable interest entity. These changes become effective for us beginning on January 1, 2010. The
adoption of this change is not expected to have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.
On June 30, 2009, we adopted changes issued by the FASB to fair value disclosures of financial instruments. These
changes require a publicly traded company to include disclosures about the fair value of its financial instruments
whenever it issues summarized financial information for interim reporting periods. Such disclosures include the fair
value of all financial instruments, for which it is practicable to estimate that value, whether recognized or not
recognized in the statement of financial position; the related carrying amount of these financial instruments; and the
method(s) and significant assumptions used to estimate the fair value. Other than the required disclosures, the
adoption of these changes had no impact on our consolidated financial statements.
On June 30, 2009, we adopted changes issued by the FASB to fair value accounting. These changes provide additional
guidance for estimating fair value when the volume and level of activity for an asset or liability have significantly
decreased and includes guidance for identifying circumstances that indicate a transaction is not orderly. This guidance
is necessary to maintain the overall objective of fair value measurements, which is, that fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date under current market conditions. The adoption of these changes had no impact on our
consolidated financial statements.
On June 30,  2009, we adopted changes issued by the FASB to the recognit ion and presentation of
other-than-temporary impairments. These changes amend existing other-than-temporary impairment guidance for debt
securities to make the guidance more operational and to improve the presentation and disclosure of
other-than-temporary impairments on debt and equity securities. The adoption of these changes had no impact on our
consolidated statements.
On July 1, 2009, we adopted changes issued by the FASB to accounting for and disclosure of events that occur after
the balance sheet date but before financial statements are issued or are available to be issued, otherwise known as
�subsequent events.� Specifically, these changes set forth the period after the balance sheet date during which
management of a reporting entity should evaluate events or transactions that may occur for potential recognition or
disclosure in the financial statements, the circumstances under which an entity should recognize events or transactions
occurring after the balance sheet date in its financial statements, and the disclosures that an entity should make about
events or transactions that occurred after the balance sheet date. The adoption of these changes had no impact on our
consolidated financial statements as management already followed a similar approach prior to the adoption of this new
guidance.
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In August 2009, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2009-05, �Measuring Liabilities at Fair Value�
(ASU 2009-05). ASU 2009-05 amends the Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures Topic of the FASB Accounting
Standards Codification by providing additional guidance clarifying the measurement of liabilities at fair value. The
update reaffirms that fair value is based on an orderly transaction between market participants, even though liabilities
are infrequently transferred due to contractual or other legal restrictions. However, identical liabilities traded in the
active market should be used when available. When quoted prices are not available, the quoted price of the identical
liability traded as an asset, quoted prices for similar liabilities or similar liabilities traded as an asset, or another
valuation approach should be used. This update also clarifies that restrictions preventing the transfer of a liability
should not be considered as a separate input or adjustment in the measurement of fair value. We have adopted the
provisions of this update for fair value measurements of liabilities effective October 1, 2009, which we do not expect
to have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.
In October 2009, the FASB issued authoritative guidance for multiple-deliverable revenue arrangements that provides
amendments to the criteria for separating consideration in multiple-deliverable arrangements. As a result of these
amendments, multiple-deliverable revenue arrangements will be separated in more circumstances than under existing
U.S. GAAP by establishing a selling price hierarchy for determining the selling price of a deliverable. The selling
price used for each deliverable will be based on vendor-specific objective evidence if available, third-party evidence if
vendor-specific objective evidence is not available, or estimated selling price if neither vendor-specific objective
evidence nor third-party evidence is available. A vendor will be required to determine its best estimate of selling price
in a manner that is consistent with that used to determine the price to sell the deliverable on a standalone basis. This
guidance also eliminates the residual method of allocation and will require that arrangement consideration be allocated
at the inception of the arrangement to all deliverables using the relative selling price method, which allocates any
discount in the overall arrangement proportionally to each deliverable based on its relative selling price. Expanded
disclosures of qualitative and quantitative information regarding application of the multiple-deliverable revenue
arrangement guidance are also required under the guidance. The guidance does not apply to arrangements for which
industry specific allocation and measurement guidance exists, such as long-term construction contracts and software
transactions. This guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after June 15, 2010 and early adoption is
permitted. We may elect to adopt the provisions prospectively to new or materially modified arrangements beginning
on the effective date or retrospectively to the beginning of the year of adoption if adopted early. We are currently
evaluating the impact of this guidance on our consolidated results of operations and financial condition.
NOTE 3: DISPOSITIONS
On February 1, 2008 HealthSport and InnoZen executed a Limited Liability Company Operating Agreement (�LLC
Agreement�) with Migami for PMG. Among other things, the LLC Agreement called for Migami to contribute
$3,000,000 in cash to PMG for its intended 48% ownership and InnoZen licensed its technology to PMG for its 52%
ownership. The agreement provided that PMG was to manufacture all strip and other products for each member at cost
plus 25%. Migami made a total contribution of $990,000 of its $3,000,000 commitment. Migami�s default resulted in
its loss of rights under the agreement and any rights that were intended to transfer from InnoZen to PMG were
returned to InnoZen. InnoZen sold its interest in PMG for nominal consideration on December 30, 2008, and
recognized a book gain of $869,453 on the transaction. The gain is the difference between the Company�s share of the
PMG loss which is included in the consolidated financial statements in 2008 and its investment.
For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, in accordance with guidance issued by the FASB, the Company
accounted for its investments in which it holds a non-controlling interest under the full consolidation method whereby
transactions between the Company and its investments have been eliminated through consolidation.
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The changes in non-controlling interests for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

Amount

Balance, January 1, 2008 $ �
Contributions made 1,130,000
Cash paid to member (140,000)
Non-controlling interest in loss (990,000)

Balance, December 31, 2008 �

Balance, December 31, 2009 $ �

NOTE 4: INVENTORY
Inventory at December 31, 2009 and 2008, consists of the following:

2009 2008

Raw materials $ 88,533 $ 173,980
Work in progress 23,700 286,711
Finished goods � 125,055

112,233 585,746
Reserve for obsolescence (5,701) �

Total inventory $ 106,532 $ 585,746
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NOTE 5: PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment at December 31, 2009 and 2008 consists of the following:

2009 2008
Subject to Subject to
Capital Capital

Total Lease Total Lease

Office furniture and equipment $ 73,681 $ � $ 75,343 $ �
Computer software 106,800 99,172 106,800 99,172
Manufacturing equipment 755,323 419,695 734,220 419,695
Leasehold improvements 198,320 � 52,061 �

1,134,124 518,867 968,424 518,867
Accumulated depreciation (363,891) (235,904) (212,338) (145,824)

$ 770,233 $ 282,963 $ 756,086 $ 373,043

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 amounted to $191,772 and $147,105,
respectively, which includes depreciation of $90,079 and $7,920, respectively, for capitalized leased assets.
NOTE 6: INTANGIBLE ASSETS
The Company�s intangible assets consist of the following at December 31, 2009 and 2008:

2009 2008

Patent costs and other intangible assets:
Patent and trade secret costs $ 12,843,865 $ 19,524,728
Trademarks � 1,188,000
Web site 43,488 65,675

12,887,353 20,778,403
Accumulated amortization
Patent and trade secret costs 2,026,299 2,137,865
Web site 28,630 18,778

2,054,929 2,156,643

Net $ 10,832,424 $ 18,621,760

Goodwill $ � $ 10,276,948
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The annual amortization of intangible assets for each of the next five years is as follows:

Years Ending December 31
2010 $ 662,972
2011 662,972
2012 662,972
2013 662,972
2014 662,972

Total amortization $ 3,314,860

Due to a significant reduction in business volume and a decline in the quoted market price of the Company�s stock
during the year ended December 31, 2009, management determined that the fair value of certain of the Company�s
intangible assets had declined. Based on management�s analysis, the Company recorded an impairment loss of
$10,276,948 for goodwill and an impairment loss of $6,714,477 for the net carrying value of our patents, trade secrets
and web site for the year ended December 31, 2009. For the year ended December 31, 2008, the Company recorded an
impairment loss of $648,600 for the net carrying value of its client list and recorded an impairment of the remaining
goodwill associated with its wholly-owned subsidiary.
In 2008, the Company sold its trademark for Enlyten to an affiliate of T. Lynn Mitchell Companies, LLC (�T Lynn�) for
$300,000 which is to be paid at the rate of $0.015 per cassette sold pursuant to the distributor agreement.
NOTE 7: CAPITAL LEASES
In 2005, the Company entered into a sale-leaseback agreement, under which it sold certain manufacturing equipment
and leased it back for a period of three years. The leaseback was accounted for as a capital lease, and no gain was
recognized on the transaction. This agreement was amended in 2008, additional assets were added to the lease and the
term was revised to be completed on January 2013. In 2007, the Company entered into a five year lease agreement for
manufacturing software. The following is a schedule by years of future minimum lease payments under capital leases
together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments as of December 31, 2009:

Years Ending December 31
2010 $ 86,102
2011 86,102
2012 78,318
2013 75,373

Total mininum lease payments 325,895
Amount representing interest (51,706)

Present value of minimum lease payments 274,189
Less: current obligations (70,512)

Non-current obligations under capital lease $ 203,677
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NOTE 8: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Assets and liabilities recorded at fair value in the
consolidated balance sheets are categorized based upon the level of judgment associated with the inputs used to
measure their fair value. The fair value hierarchy distinguishes between (1) market participant assumptions developed
based on market data obtained from independent sources (observable inputs) and (2) an entity�s own assumptions
about market participant assumptions developed based on the best information available in the circumstances
(unobservable inputs). The fair value hierarchy consists of three broad levels, which gives the highest priority to
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (Level 3). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below:

Level Input: Input Definition:
Level I Inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets at the

measurement date.
Level II Inputs, other than quoted prices included in Level I, that are observable for the asset or liability through

corroboration with market data at the measurement date.
Level III Unobservable inputs that reflect management�s best estimate of what market participants would use in

pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
The following table summarizes fair value measurements by level at December 31, 2009 for assets and liabilities
measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

Level I Level II Level III Total
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,205,945 $ � $ � $ 1,205,945
Derivative Liability $ � $ � $ (79,266) $ (79,266)
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We have issued convertible secured notes in 2008. The convertible notes require us to record the value of the
conversion feature as a liability, at fair value, pursuant to FASB accounting rules, including provisions in the notes
that protect the holders from declines in the Company�s stock price, which is considered outside the control of the
Company. The derivative liabilities are marked-to-market each reporting period and changes in fair value are recorded
as a non-operating gain or loss in our statement of operations, until they are completely settled. The fair value of the
conversion feature is determined each reporting period using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, and is affected
by changes in inputs to that model including our stock price, expected stock price volatility, interest rates and
expected term. The assumptions used in valuing the derivative liability during 2009 were as follows:

Risk free interest rate 0.45%
Expected life 0 � 0.5 years
Dividend Yield 0%
Volatility 121%
The following is a reconciliation of the derivative liability for 2009:

Value at January 1, 2009 $ 3,252,341
Modification of instruments 129,254
Decrease in Value (3,302,329)

Value at December 31, 2009 $ 79,266
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NOTE 9: CONVERTIBLE PROMISSORY NOTES
Convertible promissory notes consist of the following at December 31, 2009 and 2008:

2009 2008

Senior secured convertible promissory notes of $625,000 due March 31, 2010 with
an option to extend for another 6 months at the discretion of the holders and
$450,000 due September 30, 2009 (in default); interest payable at 12% per annum
and a default rate of 18% per annum; secured by technology and patent rights;
principal and accrued interest convertible into common stock at $0.15 per share
(subject to adjustment if the Company sells stock or grants conversion rates at a
lower price); accrued interest due on March 31, 2010 (13 holders) and accrued
interest due on January 1, April 1, July 1 and Oct 1, 2009 (11 holders) not paid $ 1,075,000 $ 1,100,000

Convertible loan from Migami due September 22, 2009 with interest at 10% payable
quarterly; secured; convertible into common stock at $0.10 per share; interest due
December 22, 2008, March 22, 2009 and June 22, 2009, principal and interest not
paid due to litigation involving Migami and SMI Manufacturing, LLC (litigation
does not involve the Company) 100,000 100,000

Convertible promissory note to an individual due December 24, 2010 including
interest at 8% per annum; unsecured; convertible into common stock at $0.15 per
share; interest due February 1, 2009, not paid 48,000 63,000

Convertible promissory note to the Company�s former counsel due April 11, 2011
including interest at 8% per annum; unsecured; convertible into common stock at
$0.15 per share; accrued interest due March 29, 2009, not paid 144,646 100,000

Convertible promissory note to a company due November 1, 2010 including interest
at 12% per annum; unsecured; convertible into common stock at $0.15 per share;
accrued interest due monthly commencing December 1, 2008, replaced several
senior secured convertible promissory notes converted into common stock in
June 2009 � 126,000

Convertible promissory note to a company due November 15, 2010 including
interest at 12% per annum; unsecured; convertible into common stock at $0.15 per
share; accrued interest due monthly commencing December 1, 2008, not paid 51,450 51,450

Convertible promissory note to a company due December 24, 2010 including
interest at 10% per annum; unsecured; convertible into common stock at $0.20 per
share; accrued interest due semi-annually commencing November, 21, 2009, not
paid 112,500 �

Convertible promissory note to an individual dated October 21, 2008 and due
October 21, 2009 including interest at 12% per annum; unsecured; convertible into
common stock at $0.15 per share, not paid 5,000 5,000

Convertible promissory note to a company due March 11, 2010 including interest at
6% per annum; unsecured; convertible into common stock at $0.20 per share;

2,500 �
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Convertible promissory note to a company due April 30, 2010 including interest at
12% per annum; unsecured; convertible into common stock at $0.15 per share;
accrued interest due April 30, 2010 15,000 �

1,554,096 1,545,450
Current portion of convertible promissory notes 1,409,450 1,268,000

Convertible promissory notes, less current portion $ 144,646 $ 277,450
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Substantially all promissory notes are with shareholders.
NOTE 10: INCOME TAXES
The Company has loss carryforwards that it can use to offset a certain amount of taxable income in the future,
however, the loss carryforwards are subject to significant limitations due to statutory ownership changes. The
Company is currently analyzing the amount of loss carryforwards available to reduce future taxable income and has
recorded a valuation allowance for the entire benefit due to the uncertainty of its realization. The primary differences
between income tax expense attributable to continuing operations and the amount of income tax expense that would
result from applying domestic federal statutory rates to income before income taxes and minority interest relates to
state income taxes and the recognition of a valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets.
The Company has adopted guidance issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (�FASB�) that clarifies the
accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise�s financial statements and prescribes a
recognition threshold of more likely than not and a measurement process for financial statement recognition and
measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. In making this assessment, a company
must determine whether it is more likely than not that a tax position will be sustained upon examination, based solely
on the technical merits of the position and must assume that the tax position will be examined by taxing authorities.
Our policy is to include interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense. Interest and
penalties totaled $0 for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The Company files income tax
returns with the Internal Revenue Service (�IRS�) and the state of California. For jurisdictions in which tax filings are
prepared, the Company is no longer subject to income tax examinations by state tax authorities for tax years through
2004, and by the IRS for tax years through 2005. The Company�s net operating loss carryforwards are subject to IRS
examination until they are fully utilized and such tax years are closed. As of December 31, 2009, the Company has
available unused Federal net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $47,000,000 and unused State net
operating loss carryforwards of approximately $11,000,000, which will expire in various periods from 2010 to 2029,
some of which may be limited as to the amount available on an annual basis.
NOTE 11: COMMON STOCK COMPENSATION PLANS AND WARRANTS
Stock compensation plans
In April 2000, the Company adopted its 2000 Stock Option Plan (the �2000 Plan�), and the Company�s Board of
Directors approved the same. The Company�s shareholders approved the 2000 Plan in April 2001. The 2000 Plan was
established to advance the interests of the Company and its stockholders by attracting, retaining and motivating key
personnel. The Board of Directors, or a committee that it appoints, is authorized to grant options to purchase the
common stock of the Company, not to exceed an aggregate of 15,000 shares. The Board of Directors, or a committee
that it appoints, is also authorized to establish the exercise price and vesting terms of individual grants under the 2000
Plan. The 2000 Plan terminates in April 2010.
On October 18, 2006, the Company adopted its 2006 Stock Option Plan (the �2006 Plan�), and the Company�s Board of
Directors and shareholders approved the 2006 Plan. The 2006 Plan was also established to advance the interests of the
Company and its stockholders by attracting, retaining and motivating key personnel. The Board of Directors, or a
committee that it appoints, is authorized to grant options to purchase the common stock of the Company, not to exceed
an aggregate of 5,000,000 shares. The Board of Directors, or a committee that it appoints, is also authorized to
establish the exercise price and vesting terms of individual grants under the 2006 Plan. The 2006 Plan terminates on
October 18, 2011.
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On December 1, 2009, the Company adopted its 2009 Equity Incentive Plan (the �2009 Plan�), and the Company�s Board
of Directors and shareholders approved the 2009 Plan. The 2009 Plan provides for grants of nonstatutory stock
options, stock appreciation rights, stock awards and stock units (collectively, the �Awards�). Qualified recipients of
Awards include our employees, officers, directors and certain consultants. Our Board of Directors will initially
administer the 2009 Plan, but has the authority to delegate administration to a committee of the Board of Directors at
any time. A total of 10,000,000 shares of our common stock may be issued pursuant to Awards granted under the
2009 Plan. The exercise price per share for the shares to be issued pursuant to an exercise of a stock option will be no
less than the fair market value per share on the grant date. No more than an aggregate of 3,500,000 shares may be
subject to awards under the Plan granted to any individual participant in any one fiscal year. The 2009 Plan terminates
on November 30, 2019. As of December 31, 2009, 4,000,000 restricted stock awards were awarded to officers and
employees of the Company, subject to vesting in accordance with the schedules set forth in the employment
agreements. As of December 31, 2009, the restricted stock awards were not issued.
Options granted under the 2000 Plan, the 2006 Plan or the 2009 Plan (collectively the �Plans�) may be either �incentive
stock options� intended to qualify as such under the Internal Revenue Code, or �non-qualified stock options.� The
Company expects that most options granted pursuant to the Plans will be subject to vesting over a three or four-year
period, such as 25% increments on each annual grant date anniversary, during which the optionee must continue to be
an employee of the Company. The Board or the committee, if applicable, may choose to impose different vesting
requirements or none at all.
The Plans also provide that all options that are not vested will become vested upon a change in control, unless the
options are either assumed or substituted with equivalent options. In addition, unvested options become vested, after a
change in control, if an optionee is subject to involuntary termination other than for cause during that optionee�s
remaining vesting period after a change in control. The 2000 Plan and the 2006 Plan further provides that all options
will be forfeited 30 days after employment terminates or six months in the case of death or disability. The 2009 Plan
provides that all options will be forfeited 90 days after employment terminates or twelve months in the case of death
or disability.
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A summary of stock option activity during the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 is as follows:

Weighted
Average

Number of
Options Exercise Price

Outstanding at January 1, 2008 4,115,390 $ 1.60

Options Granted 4,226,700 $ 0.73
Options Exercised � $ �
Options Forfeited/expired (2,995,000) $ 1.29

Outstanding at December 31, 2008 5,347,090 $ 1.09

Options Granted 110,000 $ 0.23
Options Exercised � $ �
Options Forfeited/expired (2,143,917) $ 1.36

Outstanding at December 31, 2009 3,313,173 $ 0.88

Options exercisable at December 31, 2009 3,114,843 $ 0.92

The table above includes options for 3,226,473 shares and 4,985,390 shares from the Plans discussed above at
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The weighted-average remaining contractual life of the options
outstanding at December 31, 2009 is 2.06 years. The intrinsic value of options exercisable at December 31, 2009 was
$0.
Data concerning all stock options at December 31, 2009 follows:

Weighted-
Average Number

Number Remaining of
of Contractual Options

Exercise Price Options Life (years) Exercisable

$0 � 1.10 1,731,700 3.76 1,533,370
$1.20 � 1.50 1,181,473 0.34 1,181,473
$1.60 � 2.25 400,000 � 400,000
The aggregate grant date fair value of options granted during the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 amounted
to $10,816 and $412,868, respectively.
The fair value of each option on the date of grant is estimated using the Black Scholes option valuation model. The
following weighted-average assumptions were used for options granted during the year ended December 31, 2009:

Expected term 0 � 3 years
Expected average volatility 133.68%
Expected dividend yield 0%
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Expected annual forfeiture rate 0%
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As of December 31, 2009, the total unrecognized fair value compensation cost related to unvested stock options was
$11,794, which is to be recognized over a remaining weighted average period of approximately 3.85 years.
Compensation expense related to restricted award shares was $142,222 and $0 for the years ended December 31, 2009
and 2008, respectively. Information relating to non-vested restricted award shares is as follows:

Weighted Average
Grant Date Fair

Value
Number of
Shares Per share

Nonvested, January 1, 2008 � $ �

Granted $ �
Vested � $ �
Forfeited/expired � $ �

Nonvested, December 31, 2008 � $ �

Granted 3,000,000 $ 0.16
Vested $ �
Forfeited/expired $ �

Nonvested, December 31, 2009 3,000,000 $ 0.16

Warrants
As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, there are warrants outstanding for 2,000,000 and 1,000,000 shares, respectively,
with an average exercise price of $0.40 and $0.35, respectively, which have vested. These warrants were granted to
consultants and are not issued pursuant to the Plans and begin to expire on June 30, 2010.
NOTE 12: STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY
Preferred Stock
The Company is authorized to issue up to 2,000,000 shares of Series A non-voting, cumulative preferred stock with a
par value of $2.75. At December 31, 2009 and 2008, no preferred stock was issued or outstanding. A 6% cumulative
dividend would be payable quarterly to stockholders of record on the last day of the month prior to the dividend date.
The Series A preferred stock has a liquidation preference over the Company�s common stock as well as any other
classes of stock established by the Company.
Common Stock
The Company is authorized to issue up to 500,000,000 shares of common stock with a par value of $0.0001. At
December 31, 2009 and 2008, 122,582,717 and 49,366,120 shares were issued and outstanding, respectively.
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Common Stock Transactions in 2009
� 21,006,560 shares of common stock were issued for net cash proceeds of $3,425,157;
� 2,025,000 shares of common stock were re-classed to a liability as these shares were not issued as of

December 31, 2009 in the amount of $394,000;
� 900,000 shares of common stock and 1,000,000 warrants to purchase common stock with an exercise price

of $0.60 per share were issued for services rendered in the amount of $539,494;
� 350,000 shares of common stock were issued for accounts payable in the amount of $62,762;
� 1,485,037 shares of common stock were issued for convertible notes payable and accrued interest in the

amount of $222,756;
� 1,000,000 shares of common stock were issued for payments to former officers and directors of the

Company pursuant to their separation agreements in the amount of $150,000;
� 50,000,000 shares of common stock were issued for promissory notes pursuant to the Stock Purchase

Agreement and Promissory Note Agreement in the amount of $7,500,000.
Common Stock Transactions in 2008

� 2,276,000 shares of common stock were issued for net cash proceeds of $816,500;
� 1,585,000 shares of common stock were issued for services rendered in the amount of $325,250;
� 1,000,327 shares of common stock were issued for accounts payable in the amount of $243,698;
� 693,334 shares of common stock were issued for a convertible note payable in the amount of $100,000 and

accrued interest of $4,000;
� 300,000 shares of common stock were issued for preparation of operational guidelines and procedures for

certain of the Company�s equipment which was valued at $75,000;
� 533,333 shares of common stock were issued for loan fees in the amount of $80,000; and

� 79,729 shares were issued for a cash-less warrant exercise.
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NOTE 13: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company�s total convertible promissory notes payable of $1,554,906 and
$1,545,450, respectively, were primarily owed to non-affiliated stockholders.
In August 2009, our InnoZen subsidiary entered into a Manufacturing License Agreement (the �Manufacturing
Agreement�) with SMI. Under the terms of the Manufacturing Agreement, the Company has granted SMI a
non-exclusive license to manufacture certain of the Company�s proprietary edible film-strip products. SMI is granted a
right of first negotiation for the manufacture of Products, the pricing and terms of which will be established on a
product by product basis. Both parties have granted the other a right of first negotiation in the event either
contemplates a change in control transaction. In consideration of the rights granted to SMI by InnoZen, SMI shall pay
$150,000 to InnoZen upon execution of this agreement where as $100,000 has been paid and $50,000 shall be paid
within ninety (90) days of execution of the Manufacturing Agreement. As of December 31, 2009, a $50,000 license
fee receivable due from SMI is included in Accounts Receivable. SMI has also agreed to purchase an aggregate of
4,255,320 shares of the Company�s common stock at a purchase price of $1 million or $0.235 per share. Payment of
the purchase price is to be made on the basis of $150,000 on signing the agreement, $150,000 on each of
September 15, October 15 and November 15, 2009 and the remaining $400,000 is to be paid on or before
December 31, 2009. SMI has made payments totaling $450,000. The subscription agreement has been cancelled due
to the closing of a subsequent Stock Purchase Agreement discussed below.
As of December 31, 2009, the Company has a payable due to SMI of $7,852.
On December 1, 2009, we completed the sale of 66,666,667 shares (the �Shares�) of our common stock (the �SMI
Financing�) to SMI, pursuant to the stock purchase agreement between the Company and SMI dated as of November 6,
2009 (the �Stock Purchase Agreement�). In connection with the completion of the SMI Financing and in accordance
with the Stock Purchase Agreement, SMI paid to us $2,000,000 and issued a promissory note (the �Promissory Note�) to
us in the amount of $8,000,000. The Promissory Note was originally payable in five installments as follows:

� $500,000 on or before November 15, 2009 (paid on December 1, 2009);
� $400,000 on or before December 31, 2009;
� $1,650,000 on or before February 28, 2010;
� $2,500,000 on or before April 30, 2010; and
� $2,950,000 on or before June 30, 2010.

The Promissory Note matures on June 30, 2010 and will accrue interest at the rate of 4% per annum. As of
December 31, 2009, the Company has accrued $25,833 of interest due from SMI which is included in Prepaid &
Other Assets. The Company issued and delivered 13,333,333 shares of our common stock to SMI at the time of
closing. The remaining shares were issued in the name of SMI, but will be held in escrow pursuant to a Stock Pledge
Agreement and Escrow Agreement. The Pledge Agreement provides for a partial release of shares as payments are
made under the Promissory Note. As of December 31, 2009, 50,000,000 shares are held by a third party and the value
of these shares, $7,500,000, is recorded as a Stock Subscription Receivable in the Statement of Stockholders� Equity.
In addition to the issuance of the 66,666,667 shares of common stock, the Stock Purchase Agreement provides for the
issuance of additional shares of common stock, with or without additional consideration, in the event of conversion of
outstanding convertible securities, the incursion in undisclosed liabilities, and certain other dilutive issuances.
On March 19, 2010, we entered into amendments to three agreements with SMI including (a) an amendment to stock
purchase agreement (�SPA Amendment�), (b) an amendment to promissory note (�Note Amendment�) and (c) an
amendment to stock pledge agreement (�Pledge Agreement Amendment� and collectively with the SPA Amendment
and Note Amendment, the �Amendments�). The Amendments amend the terms of the Stock Purchase Agreement,
Promissory Note and Stock Pledge Agreement (collectively, the �SMI Financing Agreements�) that we entered into with
SMI in connection with the SMI Financing. The Amendments extend the payment terms under the promissory note to
September 15, 2010 in exchange for SMI committing to provide interim financing to cover certain of our operating
and capital expenses, and making a portion of its payment obligations recourse obligations, as discussed in more detail
below.
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The Note Amendment amends the schedule of the installment payments under the promissory note to be as follows:
� $500,000 on or before November 15, 2009 (previously paid);
� $2,050,000 on or before May 15, 2010;
� $2,500,000 on or before July 15, 2010;
� $2,950,000 on or before September 15, 2010; and
� all remaining principal and interest due on September 15, 2010.

In addition, if prior to payment of the May 15, 2010 installment we have insufficient funds to pay (a) our accounts
payable as of March 19, 2010, under the Note Amendment (b) any obligations incurred in the ordinary course of
business after March 19, 2010 or (c) any payments due related to the improvements to our Oxnard plant, SMI is
obligated to advance us sufficient funds to make those payments. SMI�s obligation to make advances for expense
reimbursement under clause (a) and (b) above is limited to an aggregate of $1,000,000 and its obligation under clause
(c) is limited to an aggregate of $700,000. Any such advance payments will be credited against the May 15, 2010
payment obligation under the promissory note.
Finally, the Promissory Note originally provided that the payment obligations were non-recourse and that we were
limited to a foreclosure action pursuant to the pledge agreement and removal of SMI�s director appointees from our
board of directors as our exclusive remedies for SMI�s breach of its obligations under the promissory note.
Consequently, if SMI failed to make a payment under the promissory note, we could recover the common stock from
the stock pledge agreement, but could not sue SMI to collect the payment due. The Note Amendment modifies
Section 10 to provide that if SMI fails to make a scheduled payment under the promissory note and such failure
continues for a period of two days then SMI is obligated to pay us an amount in cash so that the amount of money
available in our corporate bank account equals $500,000. The obligation to pay up to $500,000 is a recourse obligation
and we can bring an action to collect the payment due. Upon payment, SMI would be entitled to a release of shares
from the stock pledge agreement at the rate of $0.15 per share. The purpose of this provision is to provide us with
capital to continue operations while we seek additional needed capital.
The Pledge Agreement Amendment conforms the share release provisions to coincide with the new payment terms
under the promissory note and amends the non-recourse debt provisions to conform to the limited recourse obligations
under Section 10 of the Note.
The SPA Amendment confers upon SMI certain additional rights to negotiate and compromise our obligations to
vendors and debt holders, subject to certain guidelines. The amount of any payments that SMI makes pursuant to this
right will be credited to its payment obligations under the promissory note and shares of our common stock will be
released from the stock pledge agreement at the rate of $0.15 per share.
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The SPA Amendment also adds a provision to the stock purchase agreement requiring SMI to provide consulting
services to us in connection with the improvements to and cGMP certifications for our Oxnard plant. SMI will receive
compensation for the consulting services in amounts that are pre-approved by our CEO and President and to be paid in
cash or shares of our common stock valued at the rate of $0.15 per share. In the event that SMI�s designees fail to
constitute a majority of our board of directors for any reason, SMI shall have a right to payment of all unpaid
consulting fees in cash and repayment of any expenses advanced for construction of the Oxnard facility under the
promissory note (as described above). In the event of such a demand, we have agreed to promptly deliver a short term
promissory note to SMI evidencing our repayment obligation. Payments under the short-term note shall start no earlier
than four months after SMI makes demand for payment. We have agreed to secure our payment obligation under the
short term note with a lien on all of our assets subject to senior security interests. To the extent that we have
previously released shares of common stock to SMI from the stock pledge agreement on the basis of expenses
advanced for our Oxnard facility, SMI will reconvey any such released shares to us for cancellation.
NOTE 14: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
The Company maintains its corporate offices and manufacturing facility at 1620 Beacon Place, Oxnard, CA 93033,
which contains approximately 25,000 square feet. The lease term is from December 1, 2007 through January 31, 2015.
Total rent expense was $347,731 and $338,912 in 2009 and 2008, respectively. Future minimum lease payments for
operating leases are: 2010 � $197,000; 2011 � $202,000; 2012 � $207,000; 2013 � $212,000; 2014 � $217,000; and
thereafter � $18,000.
The Company has a royalty agreement with a former employee for an indefinite period of 1.0% of the first
$20,000,000 in sales of the Fix Strips and Enlyten� Energy strips and 0.5% of the next $80,000,000 in sales of the Fix
Strips and Enlyten� Energy strips.
The Company has a commission agreement with Mr. Durschlag, former CEO, of 0.5% of the Net Sales Revenues
received by the Company on the sale of any and all dietary supplement/nutritional supplement edible film strip
products for a period of seven (7) years and 50,000 shares of unregistered stock of the Company for each $1,000,000
in Net Sales Revenues received by the Company on the sale of any and all dietary supplement/nutritional supplement
edible film strip products up to a maximum of 500,000 shares.
On March 11, 2008, the Company entered into a five-year distribution agreement with Perrigo Florida, Inc. (�Perrigo�),
formerly known as Unico Holdings, Inc. Perrigo�s customers include most of the largest retailers and distributors in the
U.S. in each of these sales channels. The agreement calls for a minimum of $22 million of product purchases over a
five-year term in order for Perrigo to maintain its exclusive distribution right.
On September 11, 2008, the Company entered into a distribution agreement with T. Lynn Mitchell Companies, LLC
(�T Lynn�) for the production and sale of a variety of dietary supplement products, including Enlyten branded
Antioxidant Strips, Electrolytes Plus Strips, Energy Strips and Melatonin Strips. National marketing of the products
began in the first quarter of 2009. These sales are subject to a 5% commission.
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The Company has failed to remit payroll tax payments of $181,502, as required by various taxing authorities. When
payment is ultimately made, management believes that the Company will be assessed various penalties for the delayed
payments. As of December 31, 2009, the Company was unable to estimate the amount of penalties that the Company
would incur as a result of these unpaid taxes.
In the normal course of business, the Company may become a party in a legal proceeding. The only significant such
matters the Company is aware of are the Gatorade matter, the Kusher matter and the Schering Plough matter which
have been reported in our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2009 and which have had
no material developments since that time.
NOTE 15: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
On March 19, 2010, we entered into amendments to three agreements with SMI including (a) an amendment to stock
purchase agreement (�SPA Amendment�), (b) an amendment to promissory note (�Note Amendment�) and (c) an
amendment to stock pledge agreement (�Pledge Agreement Amendment� and collectively with the SPA Amendment
and Note Amendment, the �Amendments�). The Amendments amend the terms of the Stock Purchase Agreement,
Promissory Note and Stock Pledge Agreement (collectively, the �SMI Financing Agreements�) that we entered into with
SMI in connection with the SMI Financing. The Amendments extend the payment terms under the promissory note to
September 15, 2010 in exchange for SMI committing to provide interim financing to cover certain of our operating
and capital expenses, and making a portion of its payment obligations recourse obligations, as discussed in more detail
below.
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The Note Amendment amends the schedule of the installment payments under the promissory note to be as follows:
� $500,000 on or before November 15, 2009 (previously paid);
� $2,050,000 on or before May 15, 2010;
� $2,500,000 on or before July 15, 2010;
� $2,950,000 on or before September 15, 2010; and
� all remaining principal and interest due on September 15, 2010.

In addition, if prior to payment of the May 15, 2010 installment we have insufficient funds to pay (a) our accounts
payable as of March 19, 2010, under the Note Amendment (b) any obligations incurred in the ordinary course of
business after March 19, 2010 or (c) any payments due related to the improvements to our Oxnard plant, SMI is
obligated to advance us sufficient funds to make those payments. SMI�s obligation to made advances for expense
reimbursement under clause (a) and (b) above is limited to an aggregate of $1,000,000 and its obligation under clause
(c) is limited to an aggregate of $700,000. Any such advance payments will be credited against the May 15, 2010
payment obligation under the promissory note.
Finally, the Promissory Note originally provided that the payment obligations were non-recourse and that we were
limited to a foreclosure action pursuant to the pledge agreement and removal of SMI�s director appointees from our
board of directors as our exclusive remedies for SMI�s breach of its obligations under the promissory note.
Consequently, if SMI failed to make a payment under the promissory note, we could recover the common stock from
the stock pledge agreement, but could not sue SMI to collect the payment due. The Note Amendment modifies
Section 10 to provide that if SMI fails to make a scheduled payment under the promissory note and such failure
continues for a period of two days then SMI is obligated to pay us an amount in cash so that the amount of money
available in our corporate bank account equals $500,000. The obligation to pay up to $500,000 is a recourse obligation
and we can bring an action to collect the payment due. Upon payment, SMI would be entitled to a release of shares
from the stock pledge agreement at the rate of $0.15 per share. The purpose of this provision is to provide us with
capital to continue operations while we seek additional needed capital.
The Pledge Agreement Amendment conforms the share release provisions to coincide with the new payment terms
under the promissory note and amends the non-recourse debt provisions to conform to the limited recourse obligations
under Section 10 of the Note.
The SPA Amendment confers upon SMI certain additional rights to negotiate and compromise our obligations to
vendors and debt holders, subject to certain guidelines. The amount of any payments that SMI makes pursuant to this
right will be credited to its payment obligations under the promissory note and shares of our common stock will be
released from the stock pledge agreement at the rate of $0.15 per share.
The SPA Amendment also adds a provision to the stock purchase agreement requiring SMI to provide consulting
services to us in connection with the improvements to and cGMP certifications for our Oxnard plant. SMI will receive
compensation for the consulting services in amounts that are pre-approved by our CEO and President and to be paid in
cash or shares of our common stock valued at the rate of $0.15 per share. In the event that SMI�s designees fail to
constitute a majority of our board of directors for any reason, SMI shall have a right to payment of all unpaid
consulting fees in cash and repayment of any expenses advanced for construction of the Oxnard facility under the
promissory note (as described above). In the event of such a demand, we have agreed to promptly deliver a short term
promissory note to SMI evidencing our repayment obligation. Payments under the short-term note shall start no earlier
than four months after SMI makes demand for payment. We have agreed to secure our payment obligation under the
short term note with a lien on all of our assets subject to senior security interests. To the extent that we have
previously released shares of common stock to SMI from the stock pledge agreement on the basis of expenses
advanced for our Oxnard facility, SMI will reconvey any such released shares to us for cancellation.
On March 19, 2010, Tom Beckett resigned his position with the Company as interim chief financial officer. Mr.
Beckett will remain as the Company�s chief operating officer and secretary. On March 19, 2010, our Board of
Directors appointed Mark Udell to serve as the Company�s chief accounting officer and to serve as the Company�s
principal financial officer until a replacement chief financial officer can be selected.

Edgar Filing: Healthsport, Inc. - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 74



-59-

Edgar Filing: Healthsport, Inc. - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 75



Table of Contents

Item 8. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
None.
Item 8A. Controls and Procedures.
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
We maintain disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) that are designed to provide reasonable assurance that the information required to
be disclosed by us in reports filed under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and
reported within the time periods specified in the rules and forms of the Securities and Exchange Commission.
We carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our chief
executive officer and chief accounting officer (who is our principal financial officer) of the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this annual report. Based on that evaluation,
our chief executive officer and chief accounting officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures as of
December 31, 2009 were effective.
Management�s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting for
the Company. Internal control over financial reporting is supported by written policies and procedures that: (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the Company�s assets; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of the Company�s management
and directors; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use or disposition of the Company�s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Management conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the Company�s internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2009 based on the framework set forth in the report entitled �Internal Control-Integrated Framework�
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, or (�COSO�). Based on this
evaluation, management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was not effective as of
December 31, 2009 because of several material weaknesses in our internal controls.
The matters involving internal controls and procedures that our management considered to be material weaknesses
under the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board were: (1) lack of a functioning audit
committee due to a lack of a majority of independent members and a lack of a majority of outside directors on our
board of directors, resulting in ineffective oversight in the establishment and monitoring of required internal controls
and procedures; (2) lack of a �whistleblower� policy for employees to report suspected internal control issues and
(3) inadequate segregation of duties due to the limited size of the accounting department and the lack of experienced
accountants caused by the Company�s limited financial resources.
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It is possible that we may have additional material weaknesses that we have not yet identified. We are in the process
of attempting to remediate the above noted material weaknesses, but that remediation was not complete as of
December 31, 2009, or the filing date of this report.
Management does not believe that any of the Company�s annual or interim financial statements issued to date contain a
material misstatement as a result of the aforementioned weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting.
This annual report does not include an attestation report of our registered public accounting firm regarding internal
control over financial reporting. Management�s report was not subject to attestation by our registered public accounting
firm pursuant to temporary rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission that permits us to provide only
management�s report in this annual report.
Management�s Remediation Initiatives
In an effort to remediate the identified material weaknesses and other deficiencies and enhance our internal controls,
we have initiated, or plan to initiate, the following measures. Management believes that the appointment of two or
more outside directors, who shall be appointed to the audit committee, will remedy the lack of a functioning audit
committee and a lack of a majority of outside directors on our Board as well as lead to effective oversight in the
establishment and monitoring of required internal controls and procedures. The Company appointed Mark Udell, a
certified public accountant, as the principal accounting officer and as Mr. Udell becomes more familiar with the
Company; we expect our internal controls and procedures will become more effective over time. We plan to adopt
corporate governance guidelines, including a code of ethics and a whistleblower policy.
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
In addition to appointing Mr. Udell as principal accounting officer, effective December 1, 2009 we experienced a
change in control that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal controls over
financial reporting. In connection with the change in control, we experienced a change in control of our Board of
Directors. Three of our directors Hank Durschlag, Anthony Seaber and Jeffrey Wattenberg resigned. Four new
directors, who are nominees of SMI, were appointed to our Board including Neil Allen, Alex Buelna, Ferrel Raskin
and Kevin Taheri. In addition to the changes at the Board level, Kevin Taheri was appointed our Chief Executive
Officer and Thomas Beckett was appointed our Chief Financial Officer.
Limitations on Internal Controls
Our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Accounting Officer, does not expect that our
disclosure controls or internal controls over financial reporting will prevent all errors or all instances of fraud. A
control system, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that
the control system�s objectives will be met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are
resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent
limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and
instances of fraud, if any, within our company have been detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that
judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur because of simple error or mistake.
Controls can also be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by
management override of the controls. The design of any system of controls is based in part upon certain assumptions
about the likelihood of future events, and any design may not succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential
future conditions. Over time, controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or deterioration in the
degree of compliance with policies or procedures. Because of the inherent limitation of a cost-effective control
system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
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Item 8B. Other Information.
None.

PART III
Item 9. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.
Identification of Directors.
The information under the caption �Election of Directors� appearing in our proxy statement to be filed for the 2010
Annual Meeting of Stockholders is incorporated herein by reference.
Identification of Executive Officers.
The information under the caption �Certain Information with Respect to Executive Officers� appearing in our proxy
statement to be filed for the 2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders is incorporated herein by reference.
Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act.
The information under the caption �Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act� appearing in our proxy
statement to be filed for the 2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders is incorporated herein by reference.
Code of Ethics.
The information under the caption �Code of Ethics� appearing in our proxy statement to be filed for the 2010 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders is incorporated herein by reference.
Audit Committee.
The information under the caption �Information Regarding the Board and its Standing Committees� appearing in our
proxy statement to be filed for the 2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders is incorporated herein by reference.
Item 10. Executive Compensation.
The information under the heading �Executive Compensation and Other Information� appearing in our proxy statement
to be filed for the 2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders is incorporated herein by reference.
Item 11. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder

Matters.
The information under the heading �Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related
Stockholder Matters� appearing in our proxy statement to be filed for the 2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders is
incorporated herein by reference.
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Item 12. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.
Related Party Transactions

Related party transactions are reviewed and approved by a disinterested majority of our board of directors, or as
otherwise provided under Delaware law. We do not have any other special committee, policy or procedure related to
the review, approval or ratification of related party transactions at this time.

In connection with the Stock Purchase Agreement for the SMI Financing, we agreed that for so long as any amounts
remain outstanding under the Promissory Note, the Company shall obtain the approval of not less than five directors
of a seven member board of directors (or not less than one plus the number of directors appointed by SMI if a
different size board) prior to taking certain corporate actions, including: (a) changing the Company�s principal line of
business; (b) any liquidation, dissolution or winding-up; (c) any amendment or restatement to the Company�s articles
of incorporation or bylaws; (d) increasing or decreasing the number of board members; (e) significant acquisitions,
dispositions, licenses or transfers of assets outside the ordinary course of business; (f) issuing capital stock, except for
shares issuable in accordance with the terms of outstanding employee benefit plans or warrants, options or other
derivative securities; (g) declaring dividends or redeeming, purchasing or otherwise effecting any recapitalization or
restructuring of outstanding shares of capital stock; (h) incurring significant indebtedness; (i) effecting any change in
control transaction; (j) modifying any executive employment agreements; (k) amending any existing agreement
between the Company and SMI; or (l) any amendment modification or waiver of the use of proceeds from the sale of
the Shares from the agreed upon use of proceeds set forth in the Stock Purchase Agreement.

Since January 1, 2009, the beginning of our last fiscal year, we have entered into the following related party
transactions:

In August 2009, our InnoZen subsidiary entered into the Manufacturing Agreement with SMI. Under the terms of the
Manufacturing Agreement, the Company has granted SMI a non-exclusive license to manufacture certain of the
Company�s proprietary edible film-strip products. SMI is granted a right of first negotiation for the manufacture of
Products, the pricing and terms of which will be established on a product by product basis. Both parties have granted
the other a right of first negotiation in the event either contemplates a change in control transaction. In consideration
of the rights granted to SMI by InnoZen, SMI was required to pay $150,000 to InnoZen. SMI has also agreed to
purchase an aggregate of 4,255,320 shares of the Company�s common stock at a purchase price of $1 million or $0.235
per share. Payment of the purchase price is to be made on the basis of $150,000 on signing the Manufacturing
Agreement, $150,000 on each of September 15, October 15 and November 15, 2009 and the remaining $400,000 is to
be paid on or before December 31, 2009. SMI made payments totaling $450,000. The subscription portion of the
Manufacturing Agreement has been cancelled due to the closing of a subsequent Stock Purchase Agreement discussed
below. At the time of the entry into the Manufacturing, SMI was not a related party; however, the Manufacturing
Agreement remains in effect and we continue to perform our obligations under its terms.

On November 4, 2009, we entered into a separation agreement with M.E. Hank Durschlag that was effective upon the
closing of the SMI Financing. Under the terms of the separation agreement, Mr. Durschlag will receive (a) a $67,750
payment on or before December 1, 2009, (b) a $7,000 payment on the first day of each month beginning January 1,
2010 for ten months, (c) 300,000 shares of unregistered common stock of our Company and (d) payment of
Mr. Durschlag�s health insurance coverage through December 31, 2009. Mr. Durschlag will also receive a commission
of 0.5% of the Net Sales Revenues received by the Company on the sale of any and all dietary supplement/nutritional
supplement edible film strip products for a period of seven (7) years and will receive 50,000 shares of unregistered
stock of our Company for each $1,000,000 in Net Sales Revenues received by the Company on the sale of any and all
dietary supplement/nutritional supplement edible film strip products up to a maximum of 500,000 shares. �Net Sales
Revenues� is defined in Mr. Durschlag�s separation agreement as the Company�s mean gross sales and licensing
revenues actually received by the Company minus all discounts, credits, withholdings, returns, allowances,
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deductions, freight costs, taxes and custom duties. The separation agreement includes a release of claims by
Mr. Durschlag.

On November 4, 2009, we entered into a separation agreement with Daniel Kelly that was effective upon the Closing
of the SMI Financing. Mr. Kelly, a board member and former executive officer of the Company, had a consulting
agreement with the Company. Under the terms of the separation agreement, the consulting agreement will terminate
and Mr. Kelly will receive (a) a $45,000 payment on or before December 1, 2009, (b) a $10,000 payment on the first
day of each month beginning on January 1, 2010 for nine months and (c) 100,000 shares of unregistered common
stock of our Company. The separation agreement includes a release of claims by Mr. Kelly.
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On November 4, 2009, we entered into a separation agreement with Anthony Seaber, a board member of the
Company, that is effective and contingent upon the Closing of the SMI Financing. Under the terms of the separation
agreement, Mr. Seaber will receive (a) a $10,000 on or before December 1, 2009 and (b) 100,000 shares of
unregistered stock of our Company. The separation agreement includes a release of claims by Mr. Seaber.

On November 4, 2009, we entered into a separation agreement with Matthew Burns was effective upon the Closing of
the SMI Financing. Mr. Burns, a board member and former executive officer of the Company, had a consulting
agreement with the Company. Under the terms of the separation agreement, the consulting agreement will terminate
and Mr. Burns will receive (a) a $35,000 payment on or before December 1, 2009 and (b) 100,000 shares of
unregistered common stock of our Company. The separation agreement includes a release of claims by Mr. Burns.

On November 6, 2009, we entered into a separation agreement with Jeffrey Wattenberg that is effective and
contingent upon the closing of the SMI Financing. Under the terms of the separation agreement, Mr. Wattenberg will
receive (a) a $30,000 payment on or before December 1, 2009, (b) 400,000 shares of unregistered common stock of
our Company, and (c) a broker agreement with the Company pursuant to which Mr. Wattenberg will receive a 4%
commission on the Net Sales Revenues received by the Company for products and customers that Mr. Wattenberg
brings to the Company and that the Company approves, and (d) 75,000 shares of unregistered common stock of our
Company for each $1,000,000 in �JV-attributable Sales� received by the Company under the term sheet agreement by
and between the Company and Destiny Productions and Content Marketing Solutions dated July 2009 up to a
maximum of 1,000,000 shares. �Net Sales Revenues� is defined in the broker agreement as the Company�s mean gross
sales revenues actually received by the Company minus all discounts, credits, withholdings, returns, allowances,
deductions, freight costs, taxes and custom duties. The separation agreement includes a release of claims by
Mr. Wattenberg.

On November 6, 2009 we entered into the Stock Purchase Agreement with SMI. On December 1, 2009, we completed
the SMI Financing in which we sold 66,666,667 of our common stock to SMI, pursuant to the Stock Purchase
Agreement. In connection with the completion of the SMI Financing and in accordance with the Stock Purchase
Agreement, SMI paid to us $2,000,000 and the Promissory Note to us in the amount of $8,000,000. The Company
issued and delivered 13,333,333 shares of our common stock to SMI at the time of closing. The remaining shares were
issued in the name of SMI and are being held in escrow pursuant to a Pledge Agreement. The Pledge Agreement
provides for a partial release of shares as payments are made under the Promissory Note. In addition to the issuance of
the 66,666,667 shares of common stock, the Stock Purchase Agreement provides for the issuance of additional shares
of common stock, with or without additional consideration, in the event of conversion of outstanding convertible
securities, the incursion in undisclosed liabilities, and certain other dilutive issuances.

On March 19, 2010, we entered into amendments to three agreements with SMI including (a) an amendment to stock
purchase agreement (�SPA Amendment�), (b) an amendment to promissory note (�Note Amendment�) and (c) an
amendment to stock pledge agreement (�Pledge Agreement Amendment� and collectively with the SPA Amendment
and Note Amendment, the �Amendments�). The Amendments amend the terms of the Stock Purchase Agreement,
Promissory Note and Stock Pledge Agreement (collectively, the �SMI Financing Agreements�) that we entered into with
SMI in connection with the SMI Financing. The Amendments extend the payment terms under the promissory note to
September 15, 2010 in exchange for SMI committing to provide interim financing to cover certain of our operating
and capital expenses, and making a portion of its payment obligations recourse obligations, as discussed in more detail
below.

The Note Amendment amends the schedule of the installment payments under the promissory note to be as follows:

� $500,000 on or before November 15, 2009 (previously paid);
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� $2,050,000 on or before May 15, 2010;

� $2,500,000 on or before July 15, 2010;

� $2,950,000 on or before September 15, 2010; and

� all remaining principal and interest due on September 15, 2010.
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In addition, if prior to payment of the May 15, 2010 installment we have insufficient funds to pay (a) our accounts
payable as of March 19, 2010, under the Note Amendment (b) any obligations incurred in the ordinary course of
business after March 19, 2010 or (c) any payments due related to the improvements to our Oxnard plant, SMI is
obligated to advance us sufficient funds to make those payments. SMI�s obligation to made advances for expense
reimbursement under clause (a) and (b) above is limited to an aggregate of $1,000,000 and its obligation under clause
(c) is limited to an aggregate of $700,000. Any such advance payments will be credited against the May 15, 2010
payment obligation under the promissory note.

Finally, the Promissory Note originally provided that the payment obligations were non-recourse and that we were
limited to a foreclosure action pursuant to the pledge agreement and removal of SMI�s director appointees from our
board of directors as our exclusive remedies for SMI�s breach of its obligations under the promissory note.
Consequently, if SMI failed to make a payment under the promissory note, we could recover the common stock from
the stock pledge agreement, but could not sue SMI to collect the payment due. The Note Amendment modifies
Section 10 to provide that if SMI fails to make a scheduled payment under the promissory note and such failure
continues for a period of two days then SMI is obligated to pay us an amount in cash so that the amount of money
available in our corporate bank account equals $500,000. The obligation to pay up to $500,000 is a recourse obligation
and we can bring an action to collect the payment due. Upon payment, SMI would be entitled to a release of shares
from the stock pledge agreement at the rate of $0.15 per share. The purpose of this provision is to provide us with
capital to continue operations while we seek additional needed capital.

The Pledge Agreement Amendment conforms the share release provisions to coincide with the new payment terms
under the promissory note and amends the non-recourse debt provisions to conform to the limited recourse obligations
under Section 10 of the Note.

The SPA Amendment confers upon SMI certain additional rights to negotiate and compromise our obligations to
vendors and debt holders, subject to certain guidelines. The amount of any payments that SMI makes pursuant to this
right will be credited to its payment obligations under the promissory note and shares of our common stock will be
released from the stock pledge agreement at the rate of $0.15 per share.

The SPA Amendment also adds a provision to the stock purchase agreement requiring SMI to provide consulting
services to us in connection with the improvements to and cGMP certifications for our Oxnard plant. SMI will receive
compensation for the consulting services in amounts that are pre-approved by our CEO and President and to be paid in
cash or shares of our common stock valued at the rate of $0.15 per share. In the event that SMI�s designees fail to
constitute a majority of our board of directors for any reason, SMI shall have a right to payment of all unpaid
consulting fees in cash and repayment of any expenses advanced for construction of the Oxnard facility under the
promissory note (as described above). In the event of such a demand, we have agreed to promptly deliver a short term
promissory note to SMI evidencing our repayment obligation. Payments under the short-term note shall start no earlier
than four months after SMI makes demand for payment. We have agreed to secure our payment obligation under the
short term note with a lien on all of our assets subject to senior security interests. To the extent that we have
previously released shares of common stock to SMI from the stock pledge agreement on the basis of expenses
advanced for our Oxnard facility, SMI will reconvey any such released shares to us for cancellation.

The Amendment Agreements were all approved by a disinterested majority of our Board of Directors with Messrs.
Allen, Buelna, Raskin, and Taheri, taking no part in the vote.

Director Independence

We currently have a seven member Board of Directors. Four of those directors have been appointed by SMI and
Messrs. Raskin and Taheri are officers of SMI. Six of the seven directors have served as officers, employees or
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consultants of Healthsport or its affiliated entities, including SMI, within the past three years. Dr. Neil Allen is our
only director who qualifies as an �independent director� as defined by Nasdaq rules.

Item 13. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.
The information under the heading �Principal Accountant Fees and Services� appearing in our proxy statement to be
filed for the 2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV
Item 14. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.
The following documents are filed as part of this report:
(1) Financial Statements. The financial statements listed below are included under Item 7 of this report:

� Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2009 and 2008;
� Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2009 and;
� Consolidated Statements of Stockholders� Equity for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008;
� Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008; and
� Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(2) Financial Statement Schedules. The following financial statement schedules are included under Item 7 of this
report: None.
(3) Exhibits. The following exhibit index shows those exhibits filed with this report and those incorporated by
reference:

Exhibit
No. Document Description Incorporation by Reference
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of

Incorporation of HealthSport, Inc.
Filed herewith.

3.2 Bylaws of HealthSport, Inc. Filed herewith.
4.1 Form of Promissory Note issued by

Supplemental Manufacturing & Ingredients,
LLC to the Company dated December 1, 2009.

Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to the
Company�s report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on November 10, 2009.

4.2 Amendment to Promissory Note issued by
Supplemental Manufacturing & Ingredients,
LLC to the Company dated March 19, 2010.

Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to the
Company�s report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on March 26, 2010.

10.1 Manufacturing License Agreement dated
August 13, 2009 between InnoZen, Inc. and
Supplemental Manufacturing Ingredients, Inc.

Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to the
Company�s report on Form 10-Q filed with the
SEC on August 14, 2009.

10.2 Stock Purchase Agreement by and between the
Company and Supplemental Manufacturing &
Ingredients, LLC dated November 6, 2009.

Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to the
Company�s report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on November 10, 2009.

10.3 Form of Stock Pledge Agreement between the
Company and Supplemental Manufacturing &
Ingredients, LLC dated December 1, 2009.

Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to the
Company�s report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on November 10, 2009.

10.4* Separation Agreement by and between the
Company and M.E. Hank Durschlag dated
November 4, 2009.

Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to the
Company�s report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on November 10, 2009.
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Exhibit
No. Document Description Incorporation by Reference
10.5* Separation Agreement by and between the

Company and Jeffrey Wattenberg dated
November 6, 2009.

Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to the
Company�s report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on November 10, 2009.

10.6* Separation Agreement by and between the
Company and Daniel Kelly dated November 4,
2009.

Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to the
Company�s report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on November 10, 2009.

10.7* Separation Agreement by and between the
Company and Anthony Seaber dated
November 4, 2009.

Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to the
Company�s report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on November 10, 2009.

10.8* Separation Agreement by and between the
Company and Matthew Burns dated November
4, 2009.

Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to the
Company�s report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on November 10, 2009.

10.9* Employment Agreement by and between the
Company and Robert Davidson dated
November 4, 2009.

Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to the
Company�s report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on November 10, 2009.

10.10* Employment Agreement by and between the
Company and Thomas Beckett dated
November 4, 2009.

Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to the
Company�s report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on November 10, 2009.

10.11* HealthSport 2009 Equity Incentive Plan. Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to the
Company�s report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on December 4, 2009.

10.12* Form of Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement. Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to the
Company�s report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on December 4, 2009.

10.13* Form of Restricted Stock Agreement. Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to the
Company�s report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on December 4, 2009.

10.14 Amendment to Stock Purchase Agreement by
and between the Company and Supplemental
Manufacturing & Ingredients, LLC dated
March 19, 2010.

Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to the
Company�s report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on March 26, 2010.

10.15 Amendment to Stock Pledge Agreement by and
between the Company and Supplemental
Manufacturing & Ingredients, LLC dated
March 19, 2010.

Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to the
Company�s report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on March 26, 2010.

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant. Filed herewith.
23.1 Consent of Creason & Associates, P.L.L.C. Filed herewith.
24.1 Power of Attorney. Included on signature page.
31.1 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Chief

Executive Officer.
Filed herewith.

31.2 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Chief
Accounting Officer.

Filed herewith.

32 Section 1350 Certification. Filed herewith.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, HealthSport, Inc., the
registrant, has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

March 31, 2010 HEALTHSPORT, INC.

By:  /s/ Kevin Taheri  
Kevin Taheri 
Chief Executive Officer 

POWER OF ATTORNEY
KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below hereby severally
constitutes and appoints Kevin Taheri and Mark Udell, and each of them, his true and lawful attorney-in-fact and
agent, with full power of substitution and re-substitution for him and in his name, place and stead, in any and all
capacities to sign any and all amendments to this report, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and other
documents in connection therewith, with the Commission, granting unto said attorney-in-fact and agents, and each of
them, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite or necessary fully to all
intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that each said
attorneys-in-fact and agents or any of them or their or his substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be
done by virtue hereof.
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of HealthSport, Inc., in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

March 31, 2010 /s/ Kevin Taheri  
Kevin Taheri, Chief Executive Officer and
Director 
(Principal Executive Officer) 

March 31, 2010 /s/ Mark Udell  
Mark Udell, Chief Accounting Officer 
(Principal financial officer) 

March 31, 2010 /s/ Robert Davidson  
Robert S. Davidson, President and
Chairman of the Board 

March 31, 2010 /s/ Neil Allen  
Neil Allen, Director 

March 31, 2010 /s/ Alex Buelna
Alex Buelna, Director 

March 31, 2010 /s/ Matthew Burns  
Matthew Burns, Director 

March 31, 2010 /s/ Daniel J. Kelly  
Daniel J. Kelly, Director 

March 31, 2010 /s/ Ferrel Raskin  
Ferrel Raskin, Director 
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